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1FUKOKU MUTUAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

Financial Highlights (Non-consolidated)

As of March 31,     

Life insurance in force  ........................................  ¥45,008,889 ¥44,309,547 ¥43,704,124	 $424,724
Total assets  .........................................................  5,699,527 6,007,231 6,214,796	 60,384
 Securities  .......................................................  4,148,127 4,633,067 4,877,141	 47,387
 Loans  .............................................................  1,039,363 907,508 835,860	 8,121
 Tangible fixed assets   .................................... 276,619 271,841 232,115	 2,255
Total liabilities  .....................................................  5,446,071 5,579,488 5,720,895	 55,585
 Policy reserves  ..............................................  5,266,726 5,343,750 5,412,622	 52,590
 Subordinated bonds  ......................................  32,896 66,187 122,346	 1,188
Total net assets ................................................... 253,455 427,742 493,900	 4,798

For the years ended March 31, 

Total ordinary revenues  ......................................  754,842 836,736	 802,326	 7,795
 Premium and other income  ...........................  589,918 647,798	 598,367	 5,813
 Investment income  .......................................  145,676 178,808	 193,044	 1,875
Total ordinary expenditures  ................................  704,413 767,395	 730,426	 7,097
Net surplus for the year  ......................................  28,778 50,822	 50,622	 491

Solvency margin ratio (%)  ................................... 741.1 970.8	 1,099.9	 —
Employees  .......................................................... 13,502 13,488	 12,999	 —

Millions of yen
Millions of
U.S. dollars

Notes 1. U.S. dollar amounts are converted from yen, for convenience only, at the rate of U.S.$1=¥102.92, the rate of exchange on March 31, 2014.
 2. Yen and U.S. dollar amounts are rounded down to the nearest million yen or million dollars.

 2012 2013	 2014	 2014
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I would like to begin by offering my appreciation to all our 
stakeholders for your continued support of Fukoku Life.
 Reflecting on fiscal 2013, ended March 31, 2014, the 
Japanese economy continued to recover, centered on internal 
demand. In the financial and capital markets, the Japanese 
market was exemplified by a weaker yen and high stock 
prices overall amid continued extremely low long-term interest 
rates. Overseas, although concerns over the European debt 
crisis have subsided, the global financial and capital markets 
wavered in response to the gradual reduction in quantitative 
easing in the United States.
 Against this backdrop, Fukoku Life worked to ensure 
that our management and employees maintain a “Customer-
Centric” approach in all aspects of business and operations, 
our philosophy of “providing service in a manner that treats 
customers as you would like to be treated.” Further, in accord-
ance with our “Personnel Pledge,” the basic policy for human 
resources development, we are working to train and develop 
personnel able to put the “Customer-Centric” approach into 
practice.
 In insurance sales, considering the current social con-
text in Japan, particularly the decreasing birthrate and aging 
population, we focused on sectors with significant customer 
need such as nursing and medical care insurance. In addition, 
in April 2013 we launched “Mirai no Tobira” (“door to the 
future”), a comprehensive insurance plan with available riders 
that greatly enhances flexibility in insurance planning. This 
new mainstay product allows customers to design detailed 
insurance coverage that fits their particular circumstances, and 
has been extremely popular.
 In terms of asset management, in the interest of ensur-
ing the safety and liquidity of the assets entrusted to us by 
customers, we maintain our focus on yen-generating assets 

Message from the President

Yoshiteru	Yoneyama
President

such as public bonds and debentures. To enhance profitability, 
we make diversified investments in such assets as foreign 
securities, stocks, and real estate, within the scope of accept-
able risk.
 To ensure financial soundness, we enhanced capital 
adequacy by issuing $500 million in U.S. dollar-denominated 
perpetual subordinated bonds in September 2013, and by 
increasing our contingency reserve. As a result, we raised our 
solvency margin to 1,099.9%, an increase of 129.1 percent-
age points compared to the end fiscal 2012 (March 31, 2013). 
We will continue to take steps to further bolster our equity, 
and provide peace of mind for our customers.
 In terms of returning dividends to customers, while 
ensuring sufficient internal reserves and balance to maintain 
financial soundness, we are considering proactive measures 
to provide customers with a substantive reduction in insur-
ance premiums.
 Fukoku Life, in a spirit of mutual assistance, and by 
conducting its highly public-interest life insurance business as 
a mutual company, puts into practice its management philoso-
phy of “protecting the interests of our policyholders.” To this 
end, our management and employees are committed to dem-
onstrating a “Customer-Centric” approach, and strive to be a 
company that earns the highest regard from its customers.
 Thank you for your continued support and cooperation 
throughout this year.

Yoshiteru	Yoneyama
President



3FUKOKU MUTUAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

Values

Fukoku Life’s Management Philosophy

Our “Customer-Centric”  Values
Possessing	“Customer-Centric”	values	means	creating	and	providing	unique	services	that	provide	

true	peace	of	mind	to	customers	based	on	the	assumption	that	all	employees	treat	customers	as	they	
themselves	would	like	to	be	treated.

Fukoku	Life	will	continue	adhering	to	its	original	management	philosophy	of	protecting	the	interests	
of	policyholders	and	contributing	to	society.	In	addition,	we	will	provide	a	workplace	that	enables	

personal	fulfillment	so	that	all	executives	and	employees	find	their	work	rewarding.

A	“Customer-Centric”	code	of	conduct	to	be	
reflected	in	the	attitudes	of	all	executives	and	
employees	as	they	carry	out	their	daily	business.

To us, “Customer-Centric” values means:

v Valuing	teamwork
v Deserving	the	trust	of	each	and	every	customer
v Being	enthusiastic	and	proud	of	our	work
v Possessing	common	sense
v Continuing	to	highlight	the	importance	of	life	
	 insurance
v Overcoming	any	kind	of	difficulty
v Aiming	to	create	a	friendly	work	environment

1. Foster personnel with “Customer-Centric” values
With the aim of providing customers with peace of mind, 
foster confident and proud employees who have the ability to 
adopt the customer’s perspective.

2. Reinforce sales representatives structure
With the aim of providing meticulous services to customers, 
reinforce the structure under which sales personnel conduct 
face-to-face sales.

3. Net increase in the number of policyholders
With the aim of earning the trust of more and more custom-
ers, strengthen insurance product design, provision, and 
follow-up services to meet customer needs.

4. Enhance business efficiency
With the aim of achieving stable growth, improve the efficien-
cy of the Company’s wide range of business activities.

Management Philosophy

To protect the interests of our 
policyholders To contribute to society Personal fulfillment

Code of Conduct Business Policies

Management 
Philosophy

Code of 
Conduct

Business 
Policies

”Values”

3FUKOKU MUTUAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

Tomofumi Akiyama
Chairman of the Board

Yoshiteru Yoneyama
President
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 Fukokushinrai Life Insurance provide ongoing support 
for the insurance sales activities of their partner financial 
institutions.
 We are also developing other sales channels for such 
products as educational insurance and individual annuities 
through insurance shops and websites operated by insur-
ance agencies.

Group Insurance
In the area of group insurance, we provide consulting serv-
ices related to our corporate clients’ benefit programs. In the 
year under review, we provided program and product pro-
posals that responded to a diverse range of customer needs.
 Further, in terms of special accounts for corporate 
insurance products after retirement, and investment trusts 
specifically for defined contribution pensions, in addition to 
conventional financial analysis, we make socially responsible 
investments (SRIs) in companies that work proactively in 
such areas as social contribution and environmental protec-
tion.

Globalization
Fukoku Life’s representative office in Singapore, established 
in July 2011, was established as the local subsidiary Fukoku 
Life Research Singapore Pte. Ltd. on April 1, 2014, as the 
approval period for the representative office had concluded. 
We already conduct asset management activities in London 
and New York via subsidiaries, and now we have augmented 
those activities with a presence in Singapore, which contin-
ues to advance as an international financial center. The new 
subsidiary will continue to conduct research on Asia’s finan-
cial and life insurance markets.

Overview
Indivisual Insurance and Annuies
Based on our “Customer-Centric” approach, we endeavor to 
earn the satisfaction of customers by designing and propos-
ing policies that they truly need and offering comprehensive 
follow-up services. We believe that such an approach will 
translate into a net increase in the number of policyholders.
 We particularly focused on the sale of products in such 
areas as nursing care insurance and medical insurance, for 
which there is a significant level of customer need. We also 
launched a new major product in April 2013, called “Mirai no 
Tobira” (door to the future), which greatly enhances the flex-
ibility of insurance planning. Through this new product, we 
are now able to offer insurance cover planning that meets 
customer needs even more closely than was possible to 
date.

Sales Channels
Fukoku Life’s products are sold through two major channels: 
its own sales representatives —called Customer Advisors— 
and the branches of financial institutions. Our nationwide 
sales network consists of 62 branches and around 10,098 
Customer Advisors promoting insurance and annuities to in-
dividuals and companies. We have strengthened our system 
of face-to-face sales through Customer Advisors in an effort 
to provide satisfaction when taking out a policy by designing 
and offering insurance that fits with a customer’s needs, and 
to ensure that customers continue to hold the policy with 
peace of mind by expanding our follow-up services. In alli-
ance with Fukokushinrai Life Insurance Co., Ltd., a subsidi-
ary, we sell our products through shinkin banks with close 
ties to local communities.

Review of Operations (Non-consolidated)
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Business Performance in Fiscal 2013
Life Insurance in Force
At fiscal year-end, life insurance in force, which comprises 
individual life insurance, individual annuities, and group insur-
ance, amounted to ¥43,704.1 billion, down 1.4% compared 
with the previous fiscal year-end. Within this amount, life 
insurance for individuals declined 2.7%, to ¥24,208.4 billion, 
individual annuities edged down 2.8%, to ¥2,948.7 billion. 
The year-end balance of life insurance in force for groups in-
creased 1.0%, to ¥16,546.8 billion. Group annuities in force 
(policy reserve) rose 1.8%, to ¥2,030.5 billion.

Annualized Premiums for New Policies and Policies in 
Force
In the year under review, annualized premiums for new poli-
cies decreased 16.7%, to ¥22.3 billion. Within this amount, 
individual insurance was down 4.7%, to ¥19.8 billion, and 
individual annuities declined 58.5%, to ¥2.4 billion. Annual-
ized premiums from medical insurance and living benefit 
insurance declined 11.8%, to ¥7.5 billion.
 Annualized premiums for policies in force edged down 
0.7%, ¥407.7 billion. Within this amount, individual insur-
ance decreased 0.7%, to ¥275.0 billion, while individual 
annuities fell 0.7%, to ¥132.6 billion. Annualized premiums 
from medical insurance and living benefit insurance rose 
0.8%, to ¥106.1 billion.

Premium Income and Payments
In the year under review, premium and other income de-
clined 7.6%, to ¥598.3 billion. This was mainly attributable to 
a decrease in saving products in the individual insurance and 
annuities sector, stemming from a lowering of the assumed 

interest rate in April 2013. Claims and other payments de-
clined 3.2% year on year to ¥503.7 billion, due mainly to a 
substantial decrease in payment of maturity proceeds for 
group pure endowment insurance.

Performance of Fukoku Life Group (Fukoku Life and Fu-
kokushinrai Life Insurance)
The Fukoku Life Group’s annualized premiums for new 
policies declined 25.2%, or ¥11.3 billion, from the previous 
fiscal year to ¥33.4 billion, due mainly to a decline in sales 
of permanent policies stemming from a lowering of the as-
sumed interest rate at both companies in April 2013. Within 
this amount, annualized premiums from medical insurance 
and living benefit insurance fell 12.0%, or ¥1.0 billion, to ¥7.6 
billion.
 Annualized premiums for policies in force increased 
0.7%, or ¥3.6 billion, to ¥556.5 billion. Annualized premiums 
from medical insurance and living benefit insurance were up 
0.7%, or ¥0.8 billion, to ¥107.8 billion. 
 The total value of premium and other income declined 
18.0%, or ¥155.2 billion, to ¥707.0 billion. Over-the-counter 
sales through financial institutions (from Fukokushinrai Life 
Insurance) declined 52.9%, or ¥105.9 billion, to ¥94.3 billion, 
due mainly to the impact from a lowering of the assumed 
interest rate in April 2013.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets
The outstanding balance of non-consolidated total assets, in-
cluding separate accounts, edged up 3.5%, or ¥207.5 billion, 
to ¥6,214.7 billion. General account assets, which constitute 
98.7% of this total, rose 3.4%, to ¥6,133.4 billion. This was 
mainly attributable to, in foreign securities, an increase in 
unhedged foreign bonds, and a boost in allocations to hedge 
against currency risk, mainly U.S. government bonds with 
superior liquidity as an alternative for Japanese bonds; and in 
stocks, valuation gains stemming from rising stock prices. As 
a result, the year-end balance of securities stood at ¥4,877.1 
billion, an increase of ¥244.0 billion, or 5.3%, compared with 
the previous fiscal year-end.
 Total liabilities edged up 2.5%, or ¥141.4 billion, to 
¥5,720.8 billion.
  Net assets amounted to ¥493.9 billion, up 15.5% com-
pared with the previous fiscal year-end.
 On a consolidated basis, total assets rose 3.7%, to 
¥7,817.6 billion, and net assets increased 14.5%, to ¥499.8 
billion.

Group insurance
Individual annuities
Individual life insurance

Life insurance in force
(¥ trillions)

FY2009 ‘10 ‘11 ‘12 ‘13

16.5

2.9

25.9

15.9

2.9

28.5

16.2

2.9

27.0

45.0

16.3

3.0

24.8

44.3
47.4 46.2

16.5

2.9

24.2

43.7

Premium and other income
(¥ billions)

FY2009 ‘10 ‘11 ‘12

623.7
665.8

589.9

‘13

598.3
647.7
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Strengthening Our Capital Base
Fukoku Life builds up its internal reserves 
on an ongoing basis in order to strength-
en its capital base. During the subject 
fiscal year, we added ¥26.8 billion to 
our contingency reserve, exceeding the 
statutory provision amount, for a total of 
¥1,120.2 billion. The contingency reserve 
is included within the policy reserves and 
is a legal reserve set up in preparation for 
future risks. The reserve for price fluctua-
tion of securities covers potential future 
losses on stocks and other assets subject 
to price fluctuation risk. The Company 
regards both reserves as part of its core 
capital.
 In addition, in September 2013 we 
enhanced capital adequacy by issuing 
$0.5 billion in U.S. dollar-denominated 
perpetual subordinated debt.

Solvency Margin
Fukoku Life’s solvency margin ratio at fiscal year-end was 
1,099.9%, up 129.1 percentage points compared with the 
previous fiscal year-end. This was due mainly to an increase 
in owned capital, and an increase in valuation difference 
on available-for-sale securities stemming from rising stock 
prices and the weaker yen. The Company’s solvency margin 
far exceeds 200%, the level set as an indicator of financial 
soundness for life insurance companies, and clearly illus-
trates our superior ability to meet insurance payments.
 We will continue making every effort to maintain a high 
solvency margin ratio as one indicator of the added peace of 
mind we offer our customers.

Ratings
Fukoku Life relies on four neutral rating organizations to 
provide an objective assessment of the Company’s ability 
to meet insurance payments. As of July 1, 2014, we have 
received ratings of AA- from Rating and Investment Informa-
tion, A- from Standard & Poor’s, A from Fitch Ratings, and 
A2 from Moody’s. Despite global financial crises in the au-
tumn of 2008 and thereafter, these ratings have not changed 
from year to year. Going forward, we will continue striving to 
maintain and further improve our high financial ratings.

Review of Operations (Non-consolidated)

Total assets
(¥ billions)

FY2009 ‘10 ‘11 ‘12 ‘13

5,613.1 5,675.2 5,699.5
6,007.2

6,214.7

Net assets
(¥ billions)

FY2009 ‘10 ‘11 ‘12 ‘13

211.9
194.6

253.4

1,127.6
1,088.3

668.4

741.1

970.8

Solvency margin ratio
(%)

FY2009 ‘10 ‘11 ‘12 ‘13

427.7

493.9 1,099.9

The figures indicated by the blue line 
for the fiscal years ended March 31, 
2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014, were 
calculated using the new standards.
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Overview
In fiscal 2013, ended March 31, 2014, the Japanese econo-
my continued to recover, led by domestic demand. Public in-
vestment expanded mainly driven by Abenomics, and busi-
ness investment increased moderately, reflecting recovery in 
corporate profits. As consumer confidence recovered, main-
ly underpinned by improvement in the employment situa-
tion, there was an upturn in private consumption and hous-
ing investment ahead of the consumption tax increase. In 
the financial and capital markets, the Japanese bond market 
gradually returned to a calm state from the turmoil that imme-
diately followed the introduction of “Quantitative and Quali-
tative Monetary Easing” by the Bank of Japan in April 2013. 
Overall, there was a continuation of yen depreciation and ris-
ing stock prices in the domestic market, while extremely low 
long-term interest rates continued on the back of large-scale 
purchases of Japanese government bonds by the Bank of Ja-
pan. Overseas, although concerns over the European debt 
crisis eased, global financial and capital markets wavered in 
response to the gradual reduction in quantitative easing in the 
United States.
 With regard to asset management, since domestic in-
terest rates remained at extremely low levels, we mainly in-
creased holdings of hedged foreign bonds as an alternative 
to domestic bonds. For foreign bonds, we increased hold-
ings, mainly U.S. Treasury bonds, which offer adequate li-
quidity, while closely monitoring such factors as the domes-
tic-overseas interest rate spread and conditions in overseas 
bond markets. With regard to domestic stocks, although the 
book value of these holdings remained largely unchanged, 
the balance of holdings increased as a result of an increase in 

the valuation difference driven by rising stock prices. Mean-
while, in the area of real estate we proceeded with previous-
ly planned sales in order to reduce risk and raise yields in im-
proving market conditions.
 Investment income from general accounts increased 
¥13.8 billion (8.2%), to ¥182.6 billion. Interest, dividends and 
other income, including that from trading securities, amount-
ed to ¥135.2 billion, an increase of ¥8.6 billion (6.8%) com-
pared with the previous fiscal year, due mainly to an increase 
in interest from foreign bonds, stemming from the bene-
fit from depreciation of the yen, and increase in the balance 
held. Gains from trading securities amounted to ¥19.4 billion, 
a decrease of ¥19.0 billion (49.6%), owing mainly to a fall in 
valuation gains on foreign bonds resulting from a rise in over-
seas interest rates. Gains on sales of securities totaled ¥33.4 
billion, an increase of ¥25.5 billion (323.1%), due mainly to in-
creased gains on sales of domestic bonds and stocks. 
 Investment expenses decreased ¥9.6 billion (16.2%), to 
¥50.0 billion. Losses on sales of securities totaled ¥9.2 billion, 
a decrease of ¥1.3 billion (12.3%), mainly due to a decrease 
in losses on sales of domestic stocks. Losses from derivative 
instruments amounted to ¥25.1 billion, a decrease of ¥9.6 bil-
lion (27.8%). Losses related to hedging currency risk, the ma-
jority of this, were largely offset by foreign exchange gains in-
cluded in gains from trading securities.
 As a result, investment income, net of investment ex-
penses, amounted to ¥132.6 billion, an increase of ¥23.5 bil-
lion (21.6%) compared with the previous fiscal year.
Domestic Bonds
Domestic bonds amounted to ¥2,876.1 billion, a decrease of 
¥95.5 billion (3.2%) compared with the previous fiscal year, 

6,133.4

Breakdown of general account assets (Fiscal year ended March 31, 2014)
(¥ billions)

General account assets
(¥ billions)

FY2009 ‘10 ‘11 ‘12 ‘13

5,519.4 5,594.5 5,619.2
5,929.6

Loans
835.8
(13.6%)

Securities 
4,798.5 (78.2%)

Total: ¥6,133.4 billion

Ordinary loans 
770.6 (12.6%)

Policy loans 
65.2 (1.1%)

Domestic bonds 
2,876.1 (46.9%)

Others 
54.6 (0.9%)

Real estate
228.1 (3.7%)
Cash and deposits, and others
216.3 (3.5%) (Note)

Other securities
74.6 (1.2%)

Domestic stocks 
482.3 (7.9%)

Foreign securities 
1,365.3 (22.3%)

Note: This total includes cash and deposits, call loans, 
monetary claims bought and money held in trust.

Investment Performance in Fiscal 2013  (General Account)
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due to our curbed purchases in response mainly to contin-
ued extremely low interest rates.
Domestic Stocks
Domestic stocks amounted to ¥482.3 billion, an increase 
of ¥50.5 (11.7%), due to valuation gains stemming from 
raising stock prices, while the book value remained largely 
unchanged.
Foreign Securities
Foreign securities amounted to ¥1,365.3 billion, a gain of 
¥278.1 billion (25.6%), resulting mainly from an increase in 
currency hedged foreign bonds, mainly U.S. Treasury bonds, 

which offer adequate liquidity, as an alternative to domestic 
bonds, and an increase in unhedged foreign bonds.
Loans
Loans amounted to ¥835.8 billion, a decrease of ¥71.6 billion 
(7.9%) compared with the end of the previous fiscal year, 
mainly due to a decline in corporate loans.
Real estate
Real estate amounted to ¥228.1 billion, a decline of ¥39.3 
billion (14.7%), mainly due to sales of property aimed at 
reducing risk and improving profitability.

482.3

Domestic bonds
(¥ billions)

FY2009 ‘10 ‘11 ‘12 ‘13

2,565.9
2,430.6

2,737.3

2,971.6

Domestic stocks
(¥ billions)

FY2009 ‘10 ‘11 ‘12 ‘13

473.2

352.6 353.2

Foreign securities
(¥ billions)

FY2009 ‘10 ‘11 ‘12 ‘13

622.0

862.0
927.3

Loans
(¥ billions)

FY2009 ‘10 ‘11 ‘12 ‘13

1,220.9
1,143.8

1,039.3

907.5
835.8

Real estate
(¥ billions)

FY2009 ‘10 ‘11 ‘12 ‘13

275.8 281.2 273.2

431.7

1,087.2

1,365.3

267.5

228.1

2,876.1

Domestic Bonds
We will closely monitor the markets, and carefully increase hold-
ings. In terms of duration, we will maintain our current level of 
around 11 years.
Domestic Stocks
We intend to selectively invest in undervalued shares in situa-
tions where prices are falling, with the objective of enhancing the 
portfolio dividend yield.
Foreign Securities
For foreign bonds, we will increase holdings of hedged foreign 

     Investment Policies for Fiscal 2014
Investment Environment
For fiscal 2014, ending March 31, 2015, we expect the Japa-
nese economy to temporarily slow down after an increase 
in demand prior to the increase in consumption tax rate, but 
subsequently to get back on a recovery track. Overseas, we an-
ticipate advanced economies to remain firm overall, including a 
moderate recovery in the United States, while China and other 

bonds, mainly U.S. Treasury bonds, as an alternative to domestic 
bonds, while carefully monitoring the spread between domestic 
and overseas interest rates. For foreign stocks, we will increase 
holdings in shares that are expected to return stable dividends.
Loans
We will maintain profitability by ensuring diversity in terms of 
such factors as borrower and loan period.
Real Estate
We will sell investment properties, with the aim of containing risk 
and enhancing profitability.

emerging economies are expected to lack strength.
 Under such conditions, we anticipate that long-term inter-
est rates will remain low as the Bank of Japan continues its 
“Quantitative and Qualitative Monetary Easing.” We also ex-
pect stock prices to remain steady, and the yen to remain weak. 
However, there may be phases of heightened volatility in the 
markets, affected by such factors as the direction of the United 
States’ monetary policy and heightening of geopolitical risks.
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As	a	mutual	life	insurance	company,	Fukoku	Life	is	en-
gaged	in	the	highly	public	business	of	protecting	policy-
holders’	rights.	Therefore,	we	are	committed	to	establish-
ing	a	management	system	that	ensures	the	soundness	
of	operations,	and	to	enhancing	management	measures,	

including	our	risk	management	system	and	compliance	
measures.	In	addition,	we	employ	our	internal	control	
systems	to	ensure	the	efficient	operation	of	these	meas-
ures.

Establishment of Management Control Measures 
The Board of Directors makes important business decisions 
and monitors business execution. The two external direc-
tors bring an outside perspective to the deliberations of the 
Board. In April 2009, Fukoku Life introduced an executive 
officer system. Under this system, we have separated and 
strengthened decision-making and business execution func-
tions, with the Board of Directors fulfilling decision-making 
and supervisory functions. We are striving to strengthen 
internal controls through the activities of various commit-
tees, including the Risk Management Committee and the 
Compliance Committee, which directly report to the Board of 
Directors.

Enhancement of Internal Control System
The Company’s Board of Directors has set the terms for the 
creation of a system of internal controls to ensure the sound-
ness of operations. We are working to enhance the efficien-
cy of operations, strengthen risk management, and promote 
compliance based on the core policies of our internal control 
system.

Risk Management System
Fukoku Life’s greatest responsibility from the standpoint of 
“Customer-Centric” approach is to firmly maintain customer 
policies and meet expectations over the long term. To en-
sure that we fulfill these responsibilities, we must accurately 
understand and analyze the various risks facing the Compa-
ny, and take appropriate measures to maintain and enhance 
financial soundness.
 Fukoku Life has established a risk management system 
with close involvement by top management, and makes a 
continual effort to enhance the sophistication of its risk man-
agement in response to the increasingly varied and complex 
risks of the external business environment. In addition, we 
are steadily implementing a comprehensive enterprise risk 
management (ERM) system, including conducting economic 
value-based risk management (conducting an assessment of 
assets and liabilities consistent with the market in order to 
understand and manage as risk the changes in the value of 
assets and liabilities).
 ERM is conducted by the Risk Management Commit-
tee, established by the Board of Directors. Several subcom-
mittees have been established under the Risk Management 
Committee to manage the various risks that arise in business 
operations, and to conduct asset and liability management 
(ALM). The Risk Management Committee consolidates and 
evaluates these risks at the corporate level, and considers 
the appropriate level of acceptable risk and risk response. 
Further, the Risk Management Advisory Committee, which 
supports the Risk Management Committee, mainly conducts 
risk management for the corporate group, along with com-
panywide stress tests.

 The Risk Management Committee is chaired by the 
president of the Company, with full-time directors and other 
executives serving as members. Directors also head the sub-
committees, providing a risk management structure based 
on the leadership of top management. The internal auditing 
department verifies that the risk management system func-
tions effectively.

Compliance System
As members of the community, all executives and employ-
ees undergo ongoing training in compliance-related matters 
so that they not only observe laws and regulations, but also 
comply with protocols and social conventions. To this end, as 
well as improving and reinforcing the compliance system, we 
hold regular hands-on training programs.
 However, we recognize that even the most robust of 
systems cannot guarantee the complete elimination of im-
proper conduct. We believe that it is important to detect any 
improper conduct early, deal with it swiftly and appropriately, 
and make constant improvements and work to rectify the 
situation in order to prevent a recurrence.
 The Compliance Committee, comprised of full-time di-
rectors and other executives, and chaired by the President, is 
mandated by the Board of Directors to promote compliance-
related activities. The Chief Compliance Officer and Compli-
ance Officers stationed at our head office ensure the con-
stant monitoring of compliance.

Protection of Personal Information
As an insurance company that is trusted by its customers, 
Fukoku Life takes great care in the handling of personal 
information. We ensure compliance with the Personal Infor-
mation Protection Law that came into effect in Japan in April 
2005, as well as related laws and guidelines. The appropriate 
management of personal information is also governed by the 
Company’s own privacy policy.

Governance System

Board of Representative Members of Policyholders 
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In	accordance	with	the	highly	public	
nature	of	the	life	insurance	business,	
Fukoku	Life	believes	that	the	sound	
management	of	its	core	life	insurance	
business	is	our	first	priority	in	terms	of	
fulfilling	our	corporate	social	responsibil-
ity	(CSR).	Furthermore,	we	believe	that	
the	Company	should	engage	in	a	range	
of	activities	aimed	at	helping	to	build	a	
better	society.
	 In	conducting	CSR-related	activities,	
in	addition	to	the	Company’s	CSR	pro-
grams,	we	believe	it	is	important	for	all	
employees	to	participate	on	a	voluntary	
basis.

Visiting Concert

Fukoku Life Concerts
Fukoku Life holds two types of concerts throughout the country: Visiting 
Concerts and Charity Concerts. Visiting Concerts give children attend-
ing schools for the disabled and disabled people living in institutions who 
cannot easily get the opportunity to hear performances of classical music 
in concert halls. Charity Concerts are held at concert halls as part of the 
Company’s commitment to fostering community welfare.
 A Visiting Concert is held after a Charity Concert has been held. Musi-
cians who performed at the Charity Concert visit a local welfare facility 
where they play music and improvise as necessary to create an enjoyable 
musical occasion for residents. Since April 1993, the Company has held 
244 Charity Concerts. Visiting Concerts, which were introduced in April 
2003, have been held at a total of 196 welfare facilities.
 Concerts are organized and run directly by Fukoku Life executives 
and employees, who collaborate with musicians to plan each program. 
 At Charity Concerts, members of the audience are asked to make 
donations, which are given to local welfare groups, and goods made by 
the disabled are sold from stalls in the hall foyer.

Smile Gallery
In the shopping mall located in the basement of our head office building, 
we opened the Smile Gallery, which displays artworks created by children 
attending schools for the disabled. As well as providing an opportunity 
for many people to view these works, the Smile Gallery aims to support 
these children in their artistic endeavors.

Hello Kitty Hospital Visit Program
Under this program, Fukoku Life’s brand mascot Hello Kitty—which is a 
popular character worldwide—makes visits to children’s hospitals to help 
cheer up and encourage patients.

Post-Disaster Relief 
To provide assistance for people impacted by the Great East Japan Earth-
quake, we arrange Visiting Concerts at schools for the disabled and other 
facilities in disaster-affected areas. We also endeavor to support the 
economies of these communities by inviting shops specializing in locally 
made produce and goods from these areas to operate stores in the open 
plaza area of our head office building. Members of the general public as 
well as Fukoku Life Group executives and employees may purchase prod-
ucts from these stores.

Flora Preservation
Recently in Japan, there has been an increase in forests left to grow 
unchecked due to the lack of people willing to take over forestry busi-
nesses. One particular problem is uncontrolled groves of the vigorously 
growing Moso bamboo, which not only invades forests, but also takes 
over farmland and causes landslides due to the shallowness of their roots. 
This bamboo problem is even found on land owned by the Company in 

Contribution to Society

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Smile Gallery

Flora Preservation
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Lehàr “The Merry Widow”
(C)Brigitte Lacombe / Metropolitan Opera

©’08,’14 SANRIO/SEGA TOYS　S.S/W.TX.JLPC
©’14 SANRIO APPROVAL No.P0609123

Partnership with Sanrio
The Hello Kitty character, owned by Sanrio Co., Ltd., has attained world-
wide popularity. Fukoku Life has adopted this widely loved character as its 
brand mascot, and features Hello Kitty in many communications media, 
including Fukoku Life posters and brochures, and in video on our website. 
Fukoku Life also maintains a partnership with Sanrio in relation to two 
theme parks, Sanrio Puroland and Harmonyland.

Providing Information
Fukoku Life publishes a variety of materials for its stakeholders. Publica-
tions that provide information on the Company’s business activities in-
clude the Japanese-language annual disclosure report. “Disclosure” (and 
abridged versions thereof), booklets written for policyholders, and this 
English-language annual report. Our diverse lineup of public relations and 
advertising activities include the production of a variety of publications as 
needed, in order to strengthen the channels of communication between 
the Company, its policyholders, and its many other customers.

We	conduct	advertising	campaigns	
to	raise	awareness	of	Fukoku	Life	
and	engage	in	a	variety	of	corporate	
communications	activities	aimed	at	
enhancing	the	understanding	of	our	
operations	among	a	broad	range	of	
stakeholders.

Communicating with Society

11FUKOKU MUTUAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

Shizuoka Prefecture. Fukoku Life has set up a forest regeneration project 
to tackle this problem. The aim of the project is to not only assist forest 
regeneration by felling bamboo groves, but to also return some bam-
boo groves to a healthy state. Since 2006, Fukoku Life’s executives and 
employees have taken part in the project. In the year under review, 113 
executives, employees, and their family members volunteered their time 
to take part in these activities.

Other Activities
The new Osaka Fukoku Mutual Life Insurance Building was completed in 
October 2010. As well as containing the offices of the Fukoku Life Group, 
the building has such tenants as universities and companies. We specifi-
cally selected tenants that would provide opportunities for interaction and 
engagement with local communities in such areas as culture and health.
 Together with Shochiku Co., Ltd., which is involved with the enter-
tainment business, Fukoku Life is a sponsor of the Metropolitan Opera: 
Live in High Definition series of screenings, which give members of the 
general public the opportunity to see some of the finest opera perform-
ances in the world.
 The Company is a proud sponsor of the Pink Ribbon Campaign, which 
promotes the importance of the early detection, diagnosis, and treatment 
of breast cancer. We also participate in the Hello Smile campaign aimed at 
providing education about prevention of cervical cancer. 
 Fukoku Life provides space and sales staff to support a mobile bak-
ery business operated by disabled people. Our executives and employees 
also participate in various other initiatives, including neighborhood cleanup 
campaigns and collections of PET bottle lids. 
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Fukoku Mutual Life Insurance Company
As of March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014

Non-consolidated Balance Sheets

Non-consolidated Financial Statements

 As of March 31,

2012 2013 2014 2014
Millions of 

U.S. dollarsMillions of yen

Assets:
Cash and deposits: 	
    Cash  .................................................................................. ¥          154 ¥          169 ¥										159 $									1
    Bank deposits  ................................................................... 29,191 33,396 34,609	 336	

29,345 33,566 34,768	 337	
Call loans  .............................................................................. 65,600 70,300 148,700	 1,444	
Monetary claims bought  ....................................................... 1,351 1,111 1,011	 9	
Money held in trust  .............................................................. 35,194 31,322 31,981	 310	
Securities:
    Government bonds  ........................................................... 1,991,905 2,181,123 2,097,463	 20,379	
    Local government bonds  .................................................. 158,459 168,921 157,102	 1,526	
    Corporate bonds  ............................................................... 614,449 652,931 654,161	 6,356	
    Stocks  ............................................................................... 377,385 454,902 504,442	 4,901	
    Foreign securities  ............................................................. 947,574 1,108,137 1,389,208	 13,497	
    Other securities  ................................................................ 58,354 67,050 74,762	 726	

4,148,127 4,633,067 4,877,141	 47,387		
Loans:
    Policy loans  ........................................................................ 70,164 66,807 65,206	 633	
    Ordinary loans  ................................................................... 969,199 840,701 770,654	 7,487	

1,039,363 907,508 835,860	 8,121	
Tangible fixed assets:
    Land  .................................................................................. 161,076 160,528 132,912 1,291	
    Buildings  ........................................................................... 109,935 105,728 94,991	 922	
    Lease assets  ..................................................................... 117 1,430 1,159	 11	
    Construction in progress  .................................................. 2,234 1,297 280	 2	
    Other tangible fixed assets  ............................................... 3,255 2,855 2,771	 26	
  276,619 271,841 232,115	 2,255	
Intangible fixed assets:
    Software  ........................................................................... 8,126 11,378 10,554	 102	
    Other intangible fixed assets  ............................................ 446 273 273	 2	

8,573 11,652 10,827		 105	
Reinsurance receivables  ....................................................... 117 42 78 0
Other assets:
    Accounts receivable  ......................................................... 10,577 7,479 6,297	 61	
    Prepaid expenses  ............................................................. 1,249 1,155 993	 9	
    Accrued income  ................................................................ 23,784 27,005 28,028	 272	
    Deposits  ........................................................................... 2,058 2,055 1,894	 18	
    Differential account for futures trading  ............................. 42 978 — —
    Derivatives  ........................................................................ 1,588 3,473 879	 8	
    Suspense payments  ......................................................... 6,497 3,222 2,430	 23	
    Lease investment assets  .................................................. — 868 835	 8	
    Other assets  ..................................................................... 4,606 2,780 3,233	 31	

50,404 49,020 44,592	 433	
Deferred tax assets  .............................................................. 47,130 — — —
Allowance for possible loan losses  ....................................... (2,299) (2,201) (2,281) (22)
Total	assets  .......................................................................... ¥5,699,527 ¥6,007,231 ¥6,214,796	 $60,384	
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 As of March 31,

2012 2013 2014 2014
Millions of 

U.S. dollarsMillions of yen

Liabilities:
Policy reserves:
    Reserve for outstanding claims  ........................................ ¥     22,615 ¥     22,673 ¥					23,067	 $						224
    Policy reserve  ................................................................... 5,190,141 5,268,768 5,338,547	 51,870
    Reserve for dividends to policyholders  ............................. 53,969 52,307 51,007	 495

5,266,726 5,343,750 5,412,622 52,590
Reinsurance payables  ........................................................... 67 86 98	 0
Subordinated bonds  .............................................................. 32,896 66,187 122,346	 1,188
Other liabilities:
    Corporate income tax payable  .......................................... 1,291 8,352 11,945	 116
    Accounts payable  ............................................................. 5,894 2,717 2,350	 22
    Accrued expenses  ............................................................ 11,169 11,268 11,112	 107
    Unearned income  ............................................................. 435 411 341	 3
    Deposits received  ............................................................. 5,301 5,289 5,355	 52
    Guarantee deposits received  ............................................ 13,577 13,584 12,839	 124
    Differential account for futures trading  ............................. 142 — 216	 2
    Derivatives  ........................................................................ 6,530 3,937 5,223	 50
    Asset retirement obligations  ............................................ 2,846 2,966 2,951	 28
    Suspense receipts  ............................................................ 1,188 1,284 1,188	 11

48,377 49,813 53,524	 520
Reserve for employees' retirement benefits  ........................ 46,320 44,965 43,112	 418
Reserve for price fluctuation of securities  ............................ 35,488 41,628 44,016	 427
Deferred tax liabilities  ........................................................... — 16,938 29,245	 284
Deferred tax liabilities for revaluation reserve for land  ......... 16,195 16,119 15,929	 154
Total	liabilities  ..................................................................... 5,446,071 5,579,488 5,720,895	 55,585

Net	assets:
Foundation funds ................................................................... 35,000 35,000 35,000	 340
Accumulated foundation funds redeemed ............................ 71,000 71,000 71,000	 689
Reserve for revaluation .......................................................... 112 112 112	 1
Surplus:
    Legal reserve for future losses .......................................... 2,325 2,399 2,485	 24
    Other surplus:
        Reserve for redemption of foundation funds ................ — 9,000 18,000	 174
        Reserve for dividend allowances ................................... 3,895 3,895 3,895	 37
        Accumulated fund for price fluctuation ......................... 11,000 11,000 21,000	 204
        Reserve for advanced depreciation of 
          real estate for tax purpose ........................................... 289 4,114 3,969	 38
        Other reserves ............................................................... 767 767 767	 7
        Unappropriated surplus ................................................. 57,827 71,084 74,662	 725

73,779 99,861 122,294	 1,188
76,104 102,260 124,780	 1,212

Total foundation funds, surplus and others ........................... 182,216 208,372 230,892	 2,243
Net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale 
   securities, net of tax ........................................................... 67,684 215,885 259,861	 2,524
Deferred valuation gains (losses)
   under hedge accounting ..................................................... 170 62 2	 0
Revaluation reserve for land, net of tax ................................. 3,383 3,421 3,144	 30
Total valuation and translation adjustments ........................... 71,239 219,370 263,008	 2,555
Total	net	assets	  .................................................................. 253,455 427,742 493,900	 4,798
Total	liabilities	and	net	assets	  ........................................... ¥5,699,527 ¥6,007,231 ¥6,214,796 $60,384

See notes to the non-consolidated financial statements.
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Fukoku Mutual Life Insurance Company
For the years ended March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014

Non-consolidated Statements of Operations

 Years ended March 31,

2012 2013 2014 2014
Millions of 

U.S. dollarsMillions of yen

Ordinary	revenues:
Premium and other income: 
    Premium income  .............................................................. ¥589,599 ¥647,446 ¥598,227 $5,812
    Reinsurance income  ......................................................... 319 352 140 1	

589,918 647,798 598,367				 5,813	
Investment income:
    Interest, dividends and other income: 
        Interest on deposits  ...................................................... 93 19 7	 0	
        Interest and dividends on securities  ............................. 76,265 83,604 94,534	 918	
        Interest on loans  ........................................................... 22,163 19,136 17,317	 168	
        Income from real estate for rent  .................................. 14,775 16,041 14,469	 140	
        Other interest and dividends  ........................................ 219 217 235 2	

113,517 119,020 126,564	 1,229
    Gains from money held in trust, net  ................................. 162 1,157 669	 6	
    Gains from trading securities, net  .................................... 12,872 38,498 19,402	 188	
    Gains on sales of securities  .............................................. 16,854 7,917 33,499	 325	
    Gains from redemption of securities  ................................ 338 — — —
    Foreign exchange gains, net  ............................................. — 908 2,212	 21	
    Reversal of allowance for possible loan losses ................. 103 — — —
    Other investment income  ................................................. 148 1,230 279	 2	
    Gains from separate accounts, net  ................................... 1,679 10,075 10,417 101

145,676 178,808 193,044		 1,875	
Other ordinary revenues:
    Fund receipt from annuity rider  ........................................ 1,347 1,071 1,271	 12	
    Fund receipt from deposit of claims paid  ......................... 6,422 5,123 5,083	 49	
    Reversal of reserve for outstanding claims ....................... 8,438 — — —
    Reversal of reserve for employees' 
       retirement benefits  ........................................................ 639 1,351 1,849	 17	
    Others  ............................................................................... 2,399 2,583 2,710 26

19,247 10,129 10,914	 106	
Total	ordinary	revenues  ..................................................... 754,842 836,736 802,326	 7,795	
Ordinary	expenditures: 	 		
Claims and other payments:
    Claims  ............................................................................... 140,375 168,766 135,639	 1,317	
    Annuities  ........................................................................... 94,983 101,437 134,935	 1,311	
    Benefits  ............................................................................ 127,082 129,048 122,255	 1,187	
    Surrenders  ........................................................................ 94,006 89,348 77,820	 756	
    Other payments  ................................................................ 26,070 31,283 32,681	 317	
    Reinsurance premiums  ..................................................... 278 328 385	 3	

482,797 520,212 503,718 4,894	
Provision for policy reserve and others: 	
    Provision for reserve for outstanding claims  .................... — 58 393	 3	
    Provision for policy reserve  .............................................. 57,823 78,627 69,779	 677	
    Interest on accumulated dividends to policyholders  ........ 83 76 74	 0	

¥  57,906 ¥  78,762 ¥		70,247 $			682
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Fukoku Mutual Life Insurance Company
For the years ended March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014

 Years ended March 31,

2012 2013 2014 2014
Millions of 

U.S. dollarsMillions of yen

Investment expenses:
    Interest expenses  ............................................................. ¥    1,409 ¥    1,777 ¥				3,633 $						35
    Losses on sales of securities  ........................................... 24,925 10,596 9,289	 90	
    Losses on valuation of securities  ..................................... 7,986 1,009 52	 0	
    Losses from derivative instruments, net  .......................... 5,725 34,773 25,116	 244	
    Foreign exchange losses, net  ........................................... 1,874 — — —
    Provision for allowance for possible loan losses  .............. — 58 56	 0	
    Depreciation of real estate for rent and other assets  ....... 6,477 5,802 5,082	 49	
    Other investment expenses  ............................................. 6,208 5,658 6,778	 65	

54,608 59,677 50,010 485
Operating expenses  ............................................................. 88,725 88,846 86,203	 837		
Other ordinary expenditures: 	
    Claim deposit payments  ................................................... 9,746 8,976 8,970	 87	
    Taxes  ................................................................................ 4,831 4,771 4,573	 44	
    Depreciation  ..................................................................... 5,276 5,571 6,023	 58	
    Others  ............................................................................... 520 578 678	 6	

20,375 19,897 20,246 196
Total	ordinary	expenditures  ............................................... 704,413 767,395 730,426	 7,097	
Ordinary	profits  ................................................................... 50,429 69,340 71,900	 698	
Extraordinary	gains: 	
    Gains on disposal of fixed assets  ..................................... 4,645 60 2,005	 19	
    Other extraordinary gains .................................................. — 193 — —
Total	extraordinary	gains  ................................................... 4,645 254 2,005	 19	
Extraordinary	losses: 	
    Losses on disposal of fixed assets  ................................... 160 348 7,314	 71	
    Impairment losses  ............................................................ 433 600 1,775	 17	
    Provision for reserve for price fluctuation of securities  .... 2,056 6,140 2,388	 23	
    Losses on reduction entry of real estate for
        tax purpose .................................................................... 9 — — —
Total	extraordinary	losses  .................................................. 2,659 7,088 11,477	 111	
Surplus	before	income	taxes  ............................................. 52,414 62,506 62,427	 606	
Income	taxes: 	
    Current  .............................................................................. 8,623 13,553 19,208	 186	
    Deferred  ........................................................................... 15,013 (1,870) (7,403) (71)
Total	income	taxes  .............................................................. 23,636 11,683 11,804	 114
Net	surplus	for	the	year  ..................................................... ¥  28,778 ¥  50,822 ¥		50,622 $				491

See notes to the non-consolidated financial statements.
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Non-consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
Fukoku Mutual Life Insurance Company
For the years ended March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014

Millions of yen

Year ended March 31, 2012

Foundation funds, surplus and others

Surplus

Other surplus

Foundation 
funds

Accumu-
lated 

foundation 
funds

 redeemed
Reserve for 
revaluation

Legal  
reserve 

for future 
losses

Reserve for 
redemption 

of 
foundation 

funds

Reserve for 
dividend

allowances

Accumulated 
fund for price 

fluctuation

Reserve for 
advanced 

depreciation of 
real estate for 
tax purpose

Other 
reserves

Unappropri-
ated 

surplus
Total 

surplus

Total 
foundation 

funds, 
surplus and 

others

Balance at the beginning of  
current fiscal year ............................. ¥40,000 ¥46,000 ¥112 ¥2,249 ¥20,000 ¥3,895 ¥       — ¥296 ¥767 ¥69,554 ¥96,763 ¥182,875 

Changes in the current fiscal year
Financing of additional  

foundation funds  ......................... 20,000 — 20,000 
Additions to reserve for  

dividends to policyholders ............ (24,381) (24,381) (24,381)
Additions to legal reserve for  

future losses ................................ 76 (76) — —
Additions to accumulated  

foundation funds redeemed ......... 25,000 — 25,000 
Payment of interest on  

foundation funds .......................... (892) (892) (892)

Net surplus for the year .................. 28,778 28,778 28,778 

Redemption of foundation funds .... (25,000) — (25,000)
Additons to reserve for  

redemption of foundation funds ... 5,000 (5,000) — —
Reversal of reserve for  

redemption of foundation funds ... (25,000) (25,000) (25,000)
Additions to accumulated  

fund for price fluctuation .............. 11,000 (11,000) — —
Reversal of reserve for  

advanced depreciation of  
real estate for tax purpose ........... (7) 7 — —

Reversal of revaluation  
reserve for land ............................ 837 837 837 

Net changes, excluding foundation  
funds, surplus and others .............

Total changes in the current  
fiscal year ......................................... (5,000) 25,000 — 76 (20,000) — 11,000 (7) — (11,727) (20,658) (658)

Balance at the end of current  
fiscal year ......................................... ¥35,000 ¥71,000 ¥112 ¥2,325 ¥      — ¥3,895 ¥11,000 ¥289 ¥767 ¥57,827 ¥76,104 ¥182,216 

Millions of yen

Year ended March 31, 2012

Valuation and translation adjustments

Total
net assets

Net unrealized gains (losses) 
on available-for-sale  
securities, net of tax

Deferred valuation gains 
(losses) under hedge  

accounting

Revaluation  
reserve for land,  

net of tax

Total valuation and  
translation  

adjustments

Balance at the beginning of current fiscal year ........................... ¥9,994 ¥365 ¥1,366 ¥11,726 ¥194,601 

Changes in the current fiscal year

Financing of additional foundation funds  .............................. 20,000 

Additions to reserve for dividends to policyholders ............... (24,381)

Additions to legal reserve for future losses ........................... —

Additions to accumulated foundation funds redeemed ......... 25,000 

Payment of interest on foundation funds .............................. (892)

Net surplus for the year ......................................................... 28,778

Redemption of foundation funds ........................................ (25,000)

Additons to reserve for redemption of foundation funds ...... —

Reversal of reserve for redemption of foundation funds ....... (25,000)

Additions to accumulated fund for price fluctuation .............. —
Reversal of reserve for advanced depreciation of  

real estate for tax purpose .................................................. —

Reversal of revaluation reserve for land ............................... 837 
Net changes, excluding foundation funds,  

surplus and others ............................................................... 57,690 (194) 2,016 59,512 59,512 

Total changes in the current fiscal year ...................................... 57,690 (194) 2,016 59,512 58,854 

Balance at the end of current fiscal year .................................... ¥67,684 ¥170 ¥3,383 ¥71,239 ¥253,455 
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Millions of yen

Year ended March 31, 2013

Foundation funds, surplus and others

Foundation 
funds

Accumu-
lated  

foundation 
funds  

redeemed
Reserve for 
revaluation

Surplus

Total 
foundation 

funds, surplus 
and others

Legal  
reserve 

for future 
losses

Other surplus

Total  
surplus

Reserve for 
redemption 

of  
foundation 

funds

Reserve for 
dividend  

allowances

Accumulated 
fund for price 

fluctuation

Reserve for 
advanced 

depreciation of 
real estate for 
tax purpose

Other  
reserves

Unappropri-
ated 

surplus

Balance at the beginning of  
current fiscal year ............................. ¥35,000 ¥71,000 ¥112 ¥2,325 ¥     — ¥3,895 ¥11,000 ¥289 ¥767 ¥57,827 ¥76,104 ¥182,216 

Changes in the current fiscal year
Additions to reserve for  

dividends to policyholders ............ (23,989) (23,989) (23,989)

Additions to legal reserve for  
future losses ................................ 74 (74) — —

Payment of interest on  
foundation funds .......................... (621) (621) (621)

Net surplus for the year .................. 50,822 50,822 50,822 

Additons to reserve for  
redemption of foundation funds ... 9,000 (9,000) — —

Additions to reserve for  
advanced depreciation of  
real estate for tax purpose ........... 3,857 (3,857) — —

Reversal of reserve for advanced 
depreciation of real estate for tax 
purpose ........................................ (32) 32 — —

Reversal of revaluation  
reserve for land ............................ (55) (55) (55)

Net changes, excluding foundation  
funds, surplus and others .............

Total changes in the current  
fiscal year ......................................... — — — 74 9,000 — — 3,825 — 13,256 26,155 26,155 

Balance at the end of current  
fiscal year ......................................... ¥35,000 ¥71,000 ¥112 ¥2,399 ¥9,000 ¥3,895 ¥11,000 ¥4,114 ¥767 ¥71,084 ¥102,260 ¥208,372 

Millions of yen

Year ended March 31, 2013

Valuation and translation adjustments

Total
net assets

Net unrealized gains(losses) 
on available-for-sale 
securities, net of tax

Deferred valuation gains 
(losses) under hedge 

accounting

Revaluation  
reserve for land,  

net of tax

Total valuation and  
translation  

adjustments

Balance at the beginning of current fiscal year ....................... ¥67,684 ¥170 ¥3,383 ¥71,239 ¥253,455 

Changes in the current fiscal year
Additions to reserve for dividends to policyholders ............ (23,989)

Additions to legal reserve for future losses ........................ —

Payment of interest on foundation funds ........................... (621)

Net surplus for the year ...................................................... 50,822 

Additions to reserve for redemption of foundation funds ... —

Additions to reserve for advanced depreciation of real 
estate for tax purpose ...................................................... —

Reversal of reserve for advanced depreciation of real 
estate for tax purpose ...................................................... —

Reversal of revaluation reserve for land ............................. (55) 

Net changes, excluding foundation funds,  
surplus and others ............................................................ 148,200 (107) 38 148,131 148,131 

Total changes in the current fiscal year .................................. 148,200 (107) 38 148,131 174,287 

Balance at the end of current fiscal year ................................ ¥215,885 ¥62 ¥3,421 ¥219,370 ¥427,742 
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Millions of yen

Year ended March 31, 2014

Foundation funds, surplus and others

Foundation 
funds

Accumu-
lated  

foundation 
funds  

redeemed
Reserve for 
revaluation

Surplus

Total  
foundation 

funds, surplus 
and others

Legal  
reserve 

for future 
losses

Other surplus

Total  
surplus

Reserve for 
redemption  

of  
foundation 

funds

Reserve for 
dividend  

allowances

Accumulated 
fund for price 

fluctuation

Reserve for 
advanced 

depreciation of 
real estate for 
tax purpose

Other  
reserves

Unappropri-
ated  

surplus

Balance at the beginning of 
 current fiscal year ............................ ¥35,000 ¥71,000 ¥112 ¥2,399 ¥9,000 ¥3,895 ¥11,000 ¥4,114 ¥767 ¥71,084 ¥102,260 ¥208,372 

Changes in the current fiscal year
Additions to reserve for  

dividends to policyholders ............ (27,762) (27,762) (27,762)

Additions to legal reserve for 
future losses ................................ 86 (86) — —

Payment of interest on 
foundation funds ............................. (621) (621) (621)

Net surplus for the year .................. 50,622 50,622 50,622 

Additions to reserve for 
redemption of foundation funds ... 9,000 (9,000) — —

Additions to accumulated fund for 
price fluctuation ............................ 10,000 (10,000) — —

Reversal of reserve for  
advanced depreciation of real 
estate for tax purpose .................. (144) 144 — —

Reversal of revaluation  
reserve for land ............................ 281 281 281 

Net changes, excluding foundation 
funds, surplus and others .............

Total changes in the current fiscal 
year .................................................. — — — 86 9,000 — 10,000 (144) — 3,578 22,519 22,519 

Balance at the end of current  
fiscal year ......................................... ¥35,000 ¥71,000 ¥112 ¥2,485 ¥18,000 ¥3,895 ¥21,000 ¥3,969 ¥767 ¥74,662 ¥124,780 ¥230,892 

Millions of yen

Year ended March 31, 2014

Valuation and translation adjustments

Total
net assets

Net unrealized gains (losses)  
on available-for-sale 
securities, net of tax

Deferred valuation gains 
(losses) under hedge 

accounting

Revaluation  
reserve for land, 

 net of tax

Total valuation and  
translation  

adjustments

Balance at the beginning of current fiscal year ....................... ¥215,885 ¥62 ¥3,421 ¥219,370 ¥427,742 

Changes in the current fiscal year

Additions to reserve for dividends to policyholders ............ (27,762)

Additions to legal reserve for future losses ........................ —

Payment of interest on foundation funds ........................... (621)

Net surplus for the year ...................................................... 50,622 

Additions to reserve for redemption of foundation funds .. —

Additions to accumulated fund for price fluctuation ........... —

Reversal of reserve for advanced depreciation of real 
estate for tax purpose ...................................................... —

Reversal of revaluation reserve for land ............................. 281 

Net changes, excluding foundation funds,  
surplus and others ............................................................ 43,976 (60) (277) 43,638 43,638 

Total changes in the current fiscal year .................................. 43,976 (60) (277) 43,638 66,157 

Balance at the end of current fiscal year ................................ ¥259,861 ¥2 ¥3,144 ¥263,008 ¥493,900 
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Millions of U.S. dollars

Year ended March 31, 2014

Foundation funds, surplus and others

Foundation 
funds

Accumu-
lated  

foundation 
funds  

redeemed
Reserve for 
revaluation

Surplus

Total  
foundation 

funds, surplus 
and others

Legal  
reserve 

for future 
losses

Other surplus

Total  
surplus

Reserve for 
redemption  

of  
foundation 

funds

Reserve for 
dividend  

allowances

Accumulated 
fund for price 

fluctuation

Reserve for 
advanced 

depreciation of 
real estate for 
tax purpose

Other  
reserves

Unappropri-
ated  

surplus

Balance at the beginning of 
 current fiscal year ............................ $340 $689 $1 $23 $87 $37 $106 $39 $7 $690 $993 $2,024 

Changes in the current fiscal year

Additions to reserve for  
dividends to policyholders ............ (269) (269) (269)

Additions to legal reserve for 
future losses ................................ 0 (0) — —

Payment of interest on 
foundation funds ............................. (6) (6) (6)

Net surplus for the year .................. 491 491 491 

Additions to reserve for 
redemption of foundation funds ... 87 (87) — —

Additions to accumulated fund for 
price fluctuation ............................ 97 (97) — —

Reversal of reserve for  
advanced depreciation of real 
estate for tax purpose .................. (1) 1 — —

Reversal of revaluation  
reserve for land ............................ 2 2 2 

Net changes, excluding foundation 
funds, surplus and others .............

Total changes in the current fiscal 
year .................................................. — — — 0 87 — 97 (1) — 34 218 218 

Balance at the end of current  
fiscal year ......................................... $340 $689 $1 $24 $174 $37 $204 $38 $7 $725 $1,212 $2,243 

Millions of U.S. dollars

Year ended March 31, 2014

Valuation and translation adjustments

Total
net assets

Net unrealized gains (losses)  
on available-for-sale 
securities, net of tax

Deferred valuation gains 
(losses) under hedge 

accounting

Revaluation  
reserve for land, 

 net of tax

Total valuation and  
translation  

adjustments

Balance at the beginning of current fiscal year ....................... $2,097 $0 $33 $2,131 $4,156 

Changes in the current fiscal year

Additions to reserve for dividends to policyholders ............ (269)

Additions to legal reserve for future losses ........................ —

Payment of interest on foundation funds ........................... (6)

Net surplus for the year ...................................................... 491 

Additions to reserve for redemption of foundation funds ... —

Additions to accumulated fund for price fluctuation ........... —

Reversal of reserve for advanced depreciation of real 
estate for tax purpose ...................................................... —

Reversal of revaluation reserve for land ............................. 2 

Net changes, excluding foundation funds,  
surplus and others ............................................................ 427 (0) (2) 424 424 

Total changes in the current fiscal year .................................. 427 (0) (2) 424 642 

Balance at the end of current fiscal year ................................ $2,524 $0 $30 $2,555 $4,798 
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Fukoku Mutual Life Insurance Company
For the years ended March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014

Non-consolidated Statements of Surplus

 Years ended March 31,

2012 2013 2014 2014
Millions of 
U.S. dollarsMillions of yen

Unappropriated	surplus  ..................................................... ¥57,827 ¥71,084 ¥74,662	 $725

Reversal of voluntary surplus reserve:

    Reversal of reserve for advanced depreciation 

       of real estate for tax purpose  ........................................ 32 144 3,707	 36	

  32 144 3,707	 36	

Total  ..................................................................................... 57,859 71,228 78,369	 761	

Appropriation	of	surplus:

    Reserve for dividends to policyholders  ............................. 23,989 27,762 31,595	 306

    Net surplus:

        Legal reserve for future losses  ..................................... 74 86 97	 	0

        Interest payment for foundation funds  ......................... 621 621 621	 	6	

        Voluntary surplus reserve:

             Reserve for redemption of foundation funds  .......... 9,000 9,000 9,000	 87

             Accumulated fund for price fluctuation  ................... — 10,000 10,000	 97

             Reserve for advanced depreciation

                of real estate for tax purpose ................................ 3,857 — 0	 0	

            12,857 19,000 19,000	 184	

13,552 19,707 19,718	 191	

Total	appropriation	of	surplus  ........................................... 37,542 47,470 51,314	 498		

Unappropriated	surplus	carried	forward  .......................... ¥20,317 ¥23,758 ¥27,055 $262

Note: Net surplus is calculated by deducting reserve for dividends to policyholders from the sum of unappropriated surplus and reversal of voluntary surplus reserve.
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I. Presentation of the Non-consolidated Financial 
   Statements

1. Basis of Presentation
The accompanying non-consolidated financial statements have 
been prepared from the accounts maintained by Fukoku Mutual 
Life Insurance Company (the "Company") in accordance with the 
provisions set forth in the Insurance Business Law of Japan and 
its related rules and regulations and in conformity with account-
ing principles generally accepted in Japan, which are different in 
certain respects from accounting principles generally accepted 
in countries and jurisdictions other than Japan.
 In addition, the notes to the non-consolidated financial 
statements include information which is not required under ac-
counting principles generally accepted in Japan but is presented 
herein as additional information.
 Amounts of less than one million yen have been eliminated. 
As a result, total in yen shown herein do not necessarily agree 
with the sum of the individual amounts.

2. U.S. Dollar Amounts
The translations of yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts are 
included solely for the convenience of the reader and have been 
made, as a matter of arithmetical computation only, at the rate 
of ¥102.92 = US$1.00, the effective rate of exchange at the bal-
ance sheet date of March 31, 2014. The translations should not 
be construed as representations that such yen amounts have 
been or could in the future be, converted into U.S. dollars at that 
or any other rates.

II. Notes to Balance Sheets

1. Significant Accounting Policies
(1) Valuation methods of securities

The valuation of securities, including bank deposits and mon-
etary claims bought which are equivalent to securities, and 
securities managed as trust assets in money held in trust, is as 
follows:

i) Trading securities are stated at fair market value. Costs of 
their sales are determined by the moving average method.

ii) Held-to-maturity debt securities are stated at amortized cost 
under the straight-line method, cost being determined by the 
moving average method.

iii) Policy-reserve-matching bonds are stated at amortized cost 
under the straight-line method, cost being determined by 
the moving average method in accordance with "Temporary 
Treatment of Accounting and Auditing Concerning Policy-re-
serve-matching Bonds in Insurance Industry" (Industry Audit 
Committee Report No.21 issued by the Japanese Institute of 

Certified Public Accountants on November 16, 2000).
iv) Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates are stated at cost, 

cost being determined by the moving average method.
v) Available-for-sale securities with fair market value are stated 

at fair market value based on the market prices at the end of 
fiscal year. Costs of their sales are determined by the mov-
ing average method. Net unrealized gains or losses on these 
available-for-sale securities, net of taxes, are recorded as a 
separate component of net assets.
       Available-for-sale securities whose fair values are 
deemed extremely difficult to obtain are stated at cost, cost 
being determined by the moving average method, except for 
public and corporate bonds including foreign bonds, of which 
the difference between acquisition cost and face value is 
considered to be an adjustment of interest. Such bonds are 
stated at amortized cost under the straight-line method, cost 
being determined by the moving average method.

(2) Valuation methods of derivative instruments

Derivative instruments are stated at fair market value.

(3) Revaluation of land

The Company revalued the land for business purposes based 
on the Law for Revaluation of Land (Law No.34 promulgated on 
March 31, 1998). The difference between fair value and book 
value resulting from the revaluation, net of related taxes, is re-
corded as revaluation reserve for land as a separate component 
of net assets and the related tax is recorded as deferred tax 
liabilities for revaluation reserve for land.
  Date of revaluation: March 31, 2002
  Method of revaluation as prescribed for in Article 3 Paragraph 
3 of the said Law:
Calculation is based on the appraisal value for property tax set 
forth in Article 2 item 3 of the Enforcement Ordinance of the 
Law for Revaluation of Land (Government Ordinance No.119 
promulgated on March 31, 1998) and the road rate set forth in 
Article 2 item 4 of the said Ordinance with certain reasonable 
adjustments.

(4) Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets is calculated by the follow-
ing methods.
  Tangible fixed assets (excluding lease assets): Declining-
balance method
However, buildings (excluding building attachments and struc-
tures) acquired on or after April 1, 1998 are depreciated using 
Straight-line method.

  Lease assets related to finance lease transactions that do not 
transfer ownership: Straight-line method over the lease term 
without residual value

Notes to the Non-consolidated Financial Statements
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Other tangible fixed assets acquired for ¥100,000 or more but 
less than ¥200,000 are depreciated equally over three years.

(5) Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities, except for 
investments in subsidiaries and affiliates, are translated into 
Japanese yen at the effective exchange rate prevailing at the 
balance sheet date. Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates are 
translated into Japanese yen at the exchange rate on the date of 
acquisition.

(6) Allowance for possible loan losses

Allowance for possible loan losses is provided in accordance 
with the Company's standards of self-assessment and write-offs 
and reserves on credit quality:

i) For the credits of borrowers who are legally bankrupt such as 
being in the proceedings of bankruptcy or civil rehabilitation 
(hereinafter called "legally bankrupt borrowers") and who are 
substantially bankrupt (hereinafter called "substantially bank-
rupt borrowers"), the Company provides the remaining amount 
of credits after the direct write-off described below and the 
deductions of the amount expected to be collected through 
the disposal of collateral or the execution of guarantees.

ii) For the credits of borrowers who are not currently bankrupt  
but have a high possibility of bankruptcy (hereinafter called 
“not currently bankrupt borrowers”), the Company provides 
the amounts deemed as necessary considering the borrow-
ers' ability to pay, within the amounts after deductions of the 
amount expected to be collected through the disposal of col-
lateral or the execution of guarantees.

iii) For the credits of borrowers other than the above, the Compa-
ny provides the amounts calculated by multiplying the borrow-
ers' balance by the actual ratio of bad debt losses on defaults 
during a certain past period.

All credits are assessed by the relevant departments in accor-
dance with the Company's standards of self-assessment on 
credit quality. The results of the assessment are reviewed by 
the audit department, which is independent of business-related 
divisions. Subsequently, the allowance for possible loan losses 
are provided based on the results of these assessments.
 For the credits of legally bankrupt borrowers and substan-
tially bankrupt borrowers, the amounts remaining after deduc-
tions of collateral value or the amounts collectible through the 
execution of guarantees is written-off directly from the bor-
rower's balance as the estimated uncollectible amounts. The 
amounts written-off as of March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014 were, 
¥287 million, ¥308 million and ¥271 million (US$2 million), re-
spectively.

(7) Reserve for employees’ retirement benefits and method of 

amortizing retirement benefit expenses

Reserve for employees’ retirement benefits are presented for 
the employees’ retirement benefits based on projected benefit 
obligation and pension plan assets at the balance sheet date.
 The Company uses the following methods for amortizing 
retirement benefit obligations and retirement benefit expenses:
•  Method for allocation of projected retirement benefits
　　　　　　　　　　　　　　������ Straight-line basis
•  Amortization period of actuarial differences ��� 10 years
•  Amortization period of prior service cost ����� 10 years

(8) Reserve for price fluctuation of securities

Reserve for price fluctuation of securities is calculated in accor-
dance with Article 115 of the Insurance Business Law.

(9) Lease transactions as a lessee

Finance lease transactions that do not transfer ownership to 
the lessee whose commencement day was on or before March 
31, 2008 continued to be accounted for in a manner similar to 
accounting treatment for ordinary rental transactions.

(10) Lease transactions as a lessor
As for the finance lease transactions where the Company is a 
lessor, the lease fee is recorded in “interest, dividends and other 
income (other interest and dividends)” at the time of receiving 
lease fee. The corresponding cost of the lease transactions is 
recorded in “other investment expenses”, which is calculated 
by deducting an amount equivalent to the interest allocated over 
the lease term from the lease fee received.

(11) Accounting for hedge activities

Hedge accounting is based on "Accounting Standards for 
Financial Instruments" (ASBJ Statement No. 10 issued by the 
Accounting Standards Board of Japan on August 11, 2006).
 For the foreign currency forward contracts against the 
exchange rate fluctuations in the value of foreign currency-de-
nominated bonds classified as available-for-sale securities, which 
qualify for hedge accounting because of high correlation and 
effectiveness between the hedging instruments and the hedged 
items, valuation gains and losses on the foreign currency for-
ward contracts are recorded in the statements of operations.
 For the interest rate swaps against the interest rate fluc-
tuations regarding loans, which qualify for hedge accounting 
because of high correlation and effectiveness between the 
hedging instruments and the hedged items, valuation gains and 
losses on the interest rate swaps are deferred until the maturity 
of the hedged transactions.
 The Company applies foreign currency swap appropriated 
treatment as a hedge for the foreign exchange fluctuation risk 
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associated with foreign currency denominated bonds issued by 
the Company.
 For judging the effectiveness of hedge used, ratio analysis 
of comparing the fluctuations in the fair value or cash flows of 
hedged items and hedging instruments is mostly applied.

(12) Accounting for employees’ retirement benefits

Accounting of unrecognized actuarial differences and unrec-
ognized prior service costs related to employees’ retirement 
benefits is different to the methods used for these items in the 
consolidated financial statements.

(13) Accounting for consumption taxes

The Company accounts for consumption taxes by the tax-exclu-
sion method. The consumption taxes on certain assets, which 
are not deductible from consumption taxes withheld and that 
are stipulated to be deferred under the Tax Law, are deferred 
as prepaid expenses and amortized equally over five years. 
Consumption taxes other than deferred consumption taxes are 
recognized as an expense when incurred.

(14) Policy reserve

Policy reserve is based on Article 116 of the Insurance Business 
Law, and the premium reserve at the end of fiscal year is calcu-
lated by the following method:
 In regard to the policies subject to the standard policy 
reserve, the method as prescribed by the Commissioner of Fi-
nancial Services Agency (Ministry of Finance Ordinance No. 48, 
1996) is applied.
 In regard to the policies not subject to the standard policy 
reserve, the net level premium method is applied.
 Based on the provision of paragraph 5, Article 69 of the 
Enforcement Regulation of the Insurance Business Law, certain 
individual annuity insurance policies, certain hospitalization rid-
ers with surgery benefits and long-term hospitalization benefits, 
and non-participating educational insurance have funded policy 
reserves included.

(15) Software

The software for internal use is amortized based on straight-line 
method over the estimated useful lives.

(16) Deferred assets
Discount on bonds is amortized equally over the period for 
which interest on bonds is fixed. This amount is deducted from 
bonds.

(17) Policy-reserve-matching bonds
Of the bonds corresponding to the sub-groups of individual 
insurance and annuities which are set by insurance types and 
investment policies, the bonds that are held to match the dura-
tion of liabilities are classified as policy-reserve-matching bonds 
in accordance with "Temporary Treatment of Accounting and 

Auditing Concerning Policy-reserve-matching Bonds in Insurance 
Industry" (Industry Audit Committee Report No. 21 issued by the 
Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants on November 
16, 2000).
 The amounts of policy-reserve-matching bonds recorded 
on the balance sheets and the market value of these bonds as 
of March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, were written in Notes No. 4 
“Financial Instruments.”

2. The Principal Accounting Standards Published before 
March 31, 2014 but not Applied are as follows.

With the publication of the “Accounting Standard for Retirement 
Benefits” (ASBJ Statement No. 26, May 17, 2012) and “Guid-
ance on Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits” (ASBJ 
Guidance No. 25, May 17, 2012), the method for calculating 
retirement benefit obligations, current service cost and others 
will be changed. Application of the standard is mandatory from 
the beginning of the fiscal year commencing on or after April 1, 
2014, and the Company plans to apply the standard from the 
beginning of fiscal 2014.
 The Company is currently evaluating the impact in the fiscal 
year after the application of the standard.

3. Financial Instruments
Asset management of the general accounts other than the sepa-
rate accounts stipulated in Article 118 Paragraph 1 of the Insur-
ance Business Law is conducted on the principle of prudent and 
profitable investments, considering public and social responsibili-
ties of the insurance business. Based on this policy, the Compa-
ny allocates the fund, securing its liquidity, from the medium-to-
long term viewpoints. The Company is diversifying investments 
in assets such as foreign securities and equity securities within 
the acceptable range of risk in order to enhance the profitability, 
although yen-denominated interest bearing assets including debt 
securities such as Japanese government bonds and loans are 
the cores of the portfolios. Derivatives are mainly used to miti-
gate the market risk regarding the securities and loans. Major 
financial instruments including securities, loans and derivatives 
are exposed to market risk and credit risk.
 The Company manages its asset management risk by 
establishing internal control systems including various rules 
pursuant to the “Three Basic Rules related to Enterprise 
Risk Management” established by the Board of Directors. 
Specifically, the Company eliminates excessive risk deviating 
from the basic principle and secures the safety of the assets 
by utilizing control functions of the Financial and Investment 
Risk Management Department towards the asset management 
sections, monitoring the status of market risk and credit risk 
periodically on a daily or monthly basis. In addition, the Company 
quantifies the market risk and credit risk using value-at-risk (VaR) 
method in order to control the possible maximum losses which 
may arise from the holding assets within a certain range of risk 
buffers.
 The carrying amounts, fair values and their related 
differences of major financial assets and liabilities as of March 
31, 2012, 2013 and 2014 were as follows:
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(1) Cash, deposits (excluding financial instruments treated as 
securities based on “Accounting Standards for Financial 
Instruments” (ASBJ Statement No.10)) and call loans:
The fair values of cash, deposits and call loans are based on 
their book values since fair values approximate book values 
due to their short maturities.

  Carrying amounts, fair values and related differences of 
cash and deposits have been disclosed as of March 31, 2014 
since the materiality has increased.

(2) Securities including deposits and monetary claims bought 
which are treated as securities based on “Accounting Stan-
dards for Financial Instruments” (ASBJ Statement No.10) and 
securities managed as trust assets in money held in trust:
The fair values of marketable securities are measured at the 
quoted market price at the end of fiscal year. The fair val-
ues of other securities without the quoted market price are 
based on the prices reasonably calculated such as the prices 
offered by the information vendors or counterparty financial 
institutions.

    Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates, unlisted stocks 
and investments in partnerships whereby partnership assets 
consist of unlisted stocks whose fair values are deemed 
extremely difficult to obtain, are excluded from above securi-
ties. The carrying amounts of investments in subsidiaries and 
affiliates, unlisted stocks and investments in partnerships 
were ¥35,969 million, ¥8,086 million and ¥7,729 million as of 
March 31, 2012, ¥35,560 million, ¥7,738 million and ¥7,667 
million as of March 31, 2013, and ¥35,560 million (US$345 
million), ¥7,653 million (US$74 million), and ¥7,967 million 
(US$ 77 million) as of March 31, 2014, respectively.

(3) Loans and monetary claims bought treated as loans:
The fair values of policy loans are deemed to approximate 
book values, considering estimated repayment period and 
interest rate conditions since their repayment deadline have 
not been set up due to the characteristics that the loan is 
limited to the amount of cash surrender values. Therefore, 
the book values are used as the fair values of policy loans.
  The fair values of floating interest rate loans among the 
ordinary loans and monetary claims bought treated as loans 
approximate the book values because the market interest 
rates are reflected in future cash flows in a short period. 
Therefore, the fair values of floating interest rate loans and 
monetary claims bought treated as loans are based on their 
book values. The fair values of fixed interest rate loans are 
measured by discounting the future cash flows to the present 
values. 
  The fair values of loans receivable from legally bankrupt 
borrowers, substantially bankrupt borrowers and not current-
ly bankrupt borrowers and monetary claims bought treated 
as loans are computed by deducting the amount of the al-
lowance for doubtful accounts from the book values before 
direct write-offs.

(4) Subordinated bonds:
Subordinated bonds issued by the Company are stated at 

fair market value.
  Carrying amounts, fair values and related differences of 
subordinated bonds have been disclosed as of March 31, 
2014 since the materiality has increased.

(5) Derivative instruments:
i) The fair values of the futures and options traded at the 

exchange are measured at the settlement price of the ex-
change.

ii) The fair values of options and swaps traded over the coun-
ter are based on the quoted prices offered by counterparty 
financial institutions.

iii) The fair values of foreign currency forward contracts are 
determined based on the spot exchange rate and forward 
contract rate.

4. Investment and Rental Property
The Company holds investment and rental properties such as 
office buildings in Tokyo and other areas. The carrying amounts 
and the fair values of investment and rental properties were 
¥226,884 million and ¥275,039 million as of March 31, 2012, 
¥221,052 million and ¥277,714 million as of March 31, 2013, 
and ¥182,229 million (US$1,770 million) and ¥263,688 million 
(US$2,562 million) as of March 31, 2014, respectively. The fair 
value is mainly based on the value calculated by the Company in 
accordance with real estate appraisal standards which includes 
some adjustments using the reference prices.
 The amount corresponding to asset retirement obligations 
included in the carrying amount of investment and rental prop-
erties were ¥1,355 million, ¥1,275 million and ¥1,192 million 
(US$11 million) as of March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respec-
tively.

5. Securities Lent under Lending Agreements
The amount of securities lent under lending agreements were 
¥45,887 million and ¥71,815 million (US$697 million) as of March 
31, 2013 and 2014, respectively.

6. Loans Receivable
The total amounts of credits to bankrupt borrowers, delinquent 
loans, delinquent loans past 3 months or more and restructured 
loans, which were included in loans, were ¥3,023 million, ¥1,759 
million and ¥1,602 million (US$15 million) as of March 31, 2012, 
2013 and 2014, respectively.
i) The balances of credits to bankrupt borrowers were ¥280 mil-

lion, ¥217 million and ¥195 million (US$1 million) as of March 
31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively.

ii) The balances of delinquent loans were ¥689 million, ¥590 
million and ¥747 million (US$7 million) as of March 31, 2012, 
2013 and 2014, respectively.

iii) There were no balances of delinquent loans past 3 months or 
more as of March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014.

iv)The balances of restructured loans were ¥2,053 million, ¥950 
million and ¥660 million (US$6 million) as of March 31, 2012, 
2013 and 2014, respectively.
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Credits to bankrupt borrowers represent loans, excluding the bal-
ances already written-off, which meet the conditions prescribed 
in Article 96 Paragraph 1 Item 3 and 4 of the Enforcement Regu-
lations of the Corporate Tax Law. Moreover, accruing interest 
on these loans is not recorded as income after determining that 
principal of or interest on these loans is unlikely to be collected 
due to the significant delay in repayment of principal or interest 
payment or for some other reasons.
 Delinquent loans are credits whose accruing interest is not 
recorded as income due to the same reasons as described 
above, and exclude credits to bankrupt borrowers and loans for 
which interest payments have been suspended and rescheduled 
to assist and support the borrowers in the restructuring of their 
business.
 Delinquent loans past 3 months or more are loans for which 

interest payment or repayment of principal are delinquent for 
3 months or more from the due date under the terms of the 
related loan agreements, excluding those loans classified as 
credits to bankrupt borrowers and delinquent loans.
 Restructured loans are loans for which certain concessions 
favorable to borrowers, such as interest reduction or exemp-
tions, rescheduling of due date of principal or interest payment, 
waiver of claim or other terms, have been negotiated for the pur-
pose of assisting and supporting the borrowers in the restructur-
ing of their business. This category excludes loans classified as 
credits to bankrupt borrowers, delinquent loans and delinquent 
loans past 3 months or more.
 The direct write-offs related to loans decreased credits to 
bankrupt borrowers described above by ¥1 million, ¥1 million 
and ¥251million (US$2 million) as of March 31, 2012, 2013 and 

　　As of March 31,

　　2012 2013
Millions of yen

Carrying
amount Fair value Difference

Carrying
amount Fair value Difference

Call loans ....................................................................................
Monetary claims bought:
 Claims treated as loans .........................................................

¥     65,600

1,351

¥     65,600

1,374

¥       —

23

¥     70,300

1,111

¥     70,300

1,136

¥         —

25
 Total monetary claims bought ...............................................
Money held in trust:
 Trading securities ..................................................................

1,351

34,194

1,374

34,194

23

—

1,111

30,322

1,136

30,322

25

—
 Total money held in trust ......................................................
Securities:
 Trading securities ..................................................................
 Held-to-maturity debt securities ............................................
 Policy-reserve-matching bonds .............................................
 Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates .............................
 Available-for-sale securities ...................................................

34,194

214,053
823,530
684,915

1,393
2,300,260

34,194

214,053
852,343
722,269

854
2,300,260

—

—
28,812
37,354

(538)
—

30,322

258,193
822,875

1,037,091
1,393

2,386,795

30,322

258,193
902,871

1,121,931
948

2,386,795

—

—
79,996
84,840

(444)
—

 Total securities ......................................................................
Loans:
 Policy loans ...........................................................................
 Ordinary loans .......................................................................

4,024,152

70,164
969,199

4,089,780

70,163
995,761

65,628

(0)
26,562

4,506,348

66,807
840,701

4,670,740

66,807
866,908

164,392

(0)
26,207

 Total loans .............................................................................
Derivative instruments:
 Hedge accounting not applied...............................................
 Hedge accounting applied .....................................................

1,039,363

(1,442)
(3,506)

1,065,924

(1,442)
(3,506)

26,561

—
—

907,508

331
(795)

933,716

331
(795)

26,207

—
—

 Total derivative instruments .................................................. ¥      (4,948) ¥      (4,948) ¥       — ¥         (463) ¥         (463) ¥        —

　　As of March 31,

2014 2014
Millions of yen Millions of U.S. dollars

Carrying
amount Fair value Difference

Carrying
amount Fair value Difference

Cash and deposits:
Cash and deposits not treated as securities ......................... ¥					34,633 ¥					34,633 ¥									— $							336 $							336 $								—
Total cash and deposits     	34,633     34,633     　   — 336 336 —

Call loans ....................................................................................       148,700     	148,700      　  — 1,444 1,444 —
Monetary claims bought:

Claims treated as loans ......................................................... 1,011 1,054 43 9 10 0
Total monetary claims bought ...............................................

Money held in trust:
Trading securities ..................................................................

1,011

30,981

1,054

30,981

43

—

9

301

10

301

0

—
Total money held in trust ......................................................

Securities:
Trading securities ..................................................................
Held-to-maturity debt securities ............................................
Policy-reserve-matching bonds .............................................
Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates .............................
Available-for-sale securities ...................................................

30,981

271,060
843,433

1,210,016
1,393

2,421,417

30,981

271,060
922,909

1,294,587
1,096

2,421,417

—

—
79,476
84,570

(296)
—

301	
	

2,633	
8,195	

11,756	
13	

23,527	

301	
	

2,633	
8,967	

12,578	
10	

23,527	

—

—
772	
821	

(2)
—

Total securities ......................................................................
Loans:

Policy loans ...........................................................................
Ordinary loans .......................................................................

4,747,321

65,206
770,654

4,911,071

65,206
793,401

163,750

(0)
22,747

46,126	
	

633	
7,487	

47,717	

633	
7,708	

1,591	
	

(0)
221	

Total loans ............................................................................. 835,860 858,608 22,747 8,121	 8,342	 221
Assets total 5,798,508 5,985,049 186,541 56,339	 58,152	 1,812	
Subordinated bonds*1 122,346 126,900 4,554 1,188	 1,233	 44	
Liabilities total 122,346 126,900 4,554 1,188	 1,233	 44	
Derivative instruments*2:

Hedge accounting not applied ..............................................
Hedge accounting applied .....................................................

(1,920)
(2,423)

(1,920)
(2,423)

—
—

	
(18)
(23)

	
(18)
(23)

—
—

Total derivative instruments .................................................. ¥						(4,343) ¥							(4,343) ¥		　			— $							(42) $							(42) $								—
*1  The fair value of derivative instruments that are currency swaps under designated hedge accounting is included in the fair value of subordinated bonds because it is accounted for as an integral 

part of the subordinated bonds that are the hedge items.
*2  Assets and liabilities generated by derivative instruments are offset and presented net. Net liabilities in total are presented in brackets.
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2014, respectively.
 The direct write-offs related to loans decreased delinquent 
loans described above by ¥286 million and ¥288 million as of 
March 31, 2012 and 2013, respectively.

7. Accumulated Depreciation of Tangible Fixed Assets
Accumulated depreciation of tangible fixed assets totaled to 
¥137,319 million, ¥142,941 million and ¥145,245 million (US$ 
1,411 million) as of March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, 
respectively.

8. Separate Accounts
Total assets in separate accounts provided for in Article 118 of 
the Insurance Business Law were ¥82,053 million, ¥78,815 mil-
lion and ¥82,680 million (US$803 million) as of March 31, 2012, 
2013 and 2014, respectively. The amounts of separate account 
liabilities were the same as separate account assets.

9. Receivables from/Payables to Subsidiaries
The total amounts of receivables from/payables to subsidiaries 
were ¥2,592 million and ¥1,544 million as of March 31, 2012, 
¥3,400 million and ¥1,415 million as of March 31, 2013, and 
¥3,445 million (US$33 million) and ¥1,324 million (US$12 mil-
lion), as of March 31, 2014, respectively.

10. Income Taxes
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as of March 31, 
2012 were ¥83,977 million and ¥33,810 million, respectively. 
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets was ¥3,035 million.  
 Major components of deferred tax assets were ¥48,892 
million of policy reserves, ¥14,257 million of reserve for 
employees’ retirement benefits and ¥10,923 million of reserve 
for price fluctuation of securities as of March 31, 2012. 
 Major component of deferred tax liabilities was ¥30,097 
million of net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities as 
of March 31, 2012.
 The statutory tax rate and the actual effective tax rate 
for the year ended March 31, 2012 were 36.2% and 45.1%, 
respectively. The major differences between the statutory 
tax rate and the actual effective tax rate were 24.7% of the 
reduction of deferred tax assets due to the changes in tax rates 
and (16.6%) of reserve for dividends to the policyholders. 
 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as of March 
31, 2013 were ¥85,971 million and ¥99,959 million, respectively. 
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets was ¥2,950 million.  

 Major components of deferred tax assets were ¥50,154 
million of policy reserves, ¥13,840 million of reserve for 
employees’ retirement benefits and ¥12,813 million of reserve 
for price fluctuation of securities as of March 31, 2013. 
 Major component of deferred tax liabilities was ¥95,997 
million of net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities as 
of March 31, 2013.
 The statutory tax rate and the actual effective tax rate 
for the year ended March 31, 2013 were 33.3% and 18.7%, 
respectively. The major difference between the statutory tax 
rate and the actual effective tax rate was (14.8%) of reserve for 
dividends to the policyholders.
 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as of March 
31, 2014 were ¥91,561 million (US$889 million) and ¥117,760 
million (US$1,144 million), respectively. Valuation allowance for 
deferred tax assets was ¥3,046 million (US$29 million).  
 Major components of deferred tax assets were ¥56,115 
million (US$545 million) of policy reserves, ¥13,548 million 
(US$131 million) of reserve for employees’ retirement benefits 
and ¥13,270 million (US$128 million) of reserve for price 
fluctuation of securities as of March 31, 2014. 
 Major component of deferred tax liabilities was ¥115,552 
million (US$1,122 million) of net unrealized gains on available-
for-sale securities as of March 31, 2014.
 The statutory tax rate and the actual effective tax rate 
for the year ended March 31, 2014 were 33.3% and 18.9%, 
respectively. The major difference between the statutory tax 
rate and the actual effective tax rate was (16.9%) of reserve for 
dividends to the policyholders. 
 Accompanying the promulgation of the “Act for Partial 
Revision to the Income Tax Act, etc.” (Act No. 10, 2014), 
the effective statutory tax rate used to calculate deferred tax 
assets and deferred tax liabilities was changed. The Company 
had previously used an effective statutory tax rate of 33.3% 
for items expected to be collected or paid in the period from 
April 1, 2014, to March 31, 2015, and a rate of 30.8% for items 
expected to be collected or paid on or after April 1, 2015. 
However, owing to the aforementioned law change, the rate 
of 30.8% for items expected to be collected or paid after April 
1, 2014 is used. As a result of this change in statutory tax rate, 
deferred tax liabilities increased ¥538 million (US$5 million), and 
deferred tax liabilities for revaluation reserve for land decreased 
¥3 million (US$36 thousand). Deferred income taxes increased 
by ¥538 million (US$5 million).

11. Reserve for Dividends to Policyholders
Changes in reserve for dividends to policyholders were as follows:

Years ended March 31,　　　　　　　　　　

 2012 2013 2014	 2014

  Millions of 
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Balance at the beginning of current fiscal year ........................................... ¥53,205 ¥53,969 ¥52,307	 $508
Transfer from surplus in previous fiscal year .............................................. 24,381 23,989 27,762	 269
Dividends paid in the current fiscal year ..................................................... (23,700) (25,727) (29,137)	 (283)
Increase in interest ..................................................................................... 83 76	 74	 0
Balance at the current fiscal year ............................................................... ¥53,969 ¥52,307 ¥51,007	 $495
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12. Stocks of Subsidiaries
The amounts of stocks of subsidiaries the Company held as of 
March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014 were ¥37,362 million, ¥36,953 
million and ¥36,953 million (US$359 million), respectively.

13. Pledged Assets and Secured Debts
Assets pledged as collateral as of March 31, 2012 were ¥24,300 
million of securities and ¥397 million of bank deposits. Secured 
debts as of March 31, 2012 were ¥4,608 million.
 Assets pledged as collateral as of March 31, 2013 were 
¥26,930 million of securities and ¥163 million of bank deposits. 
Secured debts as of March 31, 2013 were ¥4,583 million.
 Assets pledged as collateral as of March 31, 2014 were 
¥28,231 million (US$274 million) of securities and ¥1,241 million 
(US$12 million) of bank deposits. Secured debts as of March 31, 
2014 were ¥4,679 million (US$45 million).

14. Policy Reserves for the Reinsurance Contracts
Reserve for outstanding claims for the reinsurance contracts 
provided in accordance with Article 71 Paragraph 1 of the En-
forcement Regulation of the Insurance Business Law (hereinafter 
called “reserve for outstanding claims for ceded reinsurance”) 
were ¥1 million, ¥1 million and ¥4 million (US$41 thousand) as 
of March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively.
 Policy reserve for the reinsurance contracts provided in ac-
cordance with Article 71 Paragraph 1 of the Enforcement Regu-
lation of the Insurance Business Law (hereinafter called “policy 
reserve for ceded reinsurance”) were ¥30 million, ¥30 million 
and ¥30 million (US$295 thousand) as of March 31, 2012, 2013 
and 2014, respectively.

15. Adjustment Items for Redemption of Foundation Funds 
      and Appropriation of Net Surplus
The total amounts of adjustment items for redemption of foun-
dation funds and appropriation of net surplus defined in Article 
30 Paragraph 2 of the Enforcement Regulation of the Insur-
ance Business Law were ¥71,351 million, ¥219,482 million and 

¥263,120 million (US$2,556 million) as of March 31, 2012, 2013 
and 2014, respectively.

16. Commitment Line
As of March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, there were unused 
commitment line agreements under which the Company is the 
lender of ¥1,023 million, ¥972 million and ¥872 million (US$8 
million), respectively.

17. Subordinated Bonds
Repayments of subordinated bonds are subordinated to other 
obligations.

18. Assets Denominated in Foreign Currencies
Assets denominated in foreign currencies as of March 31, 2012, 
2013 and 2014 totaled to ¥791,485 million, ¥980,866 million and 
¥1,326,050 million (US$12,884 million), respectively. The prin-
cipal foreign currency asset amounts were 2,024 million euros 
and US$4,693 million as of March 31, 2012, 2,136 million euros 
and US$5,007 million as of March 31, 2013, and 2,094 million 
euros and US$7,212 million as of March 31, 2014 respectively.
 Liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as of March 31, 
2012, 2013 and 2014 totaled to ¥33,787 million, ¥37,079 million 
and ¥43,615 million (US$423 million), respectively. The principal 
foreign currency liability amounts as of March 31, 2012, 2013 
and 2014 were 306 million euros.

19. Contribution to Policyholders Protection Corporation
The future contribution to the Life Insurance Policyholders Pro-
tection Corporation of Japan under Article 259 of the Insurance 
Business Law were estimated at ¥10,731 million, ¥10,972 mil-
lion and ¥10,534 million (US$102 million) as of March 31, 2012, 
2013 and 2014, respectively. The contributions were charged as 
operating expenses in the year in which they were paid.

20. Reserve for Employees’ Retirement Benefits
(1) The reserve for employees’ retirement benefits as of March 31, 2012 and 2013 were calculated as follows:
 As of March 31,

2012 2013
Millions of yen

a. Projected benefit obligation .............................................................................................. ¥(72,872) ¥(72,507)
b. Fair value of pension plan assets ...................................................................................... 17,167 20,006
c. Unfunded benefit obligation (a+b)  ................................................................................... (55,704) (52,500)
d. Unrecognized actuarial differences .................................................................................. 10,021 8,134 
e. Unrecognized prior service cost ....................................................................................... (636) (598)
f. Reserve for employees’ retirement benefits (c+d+e) ....................................................... ¥(46,320) ¥(44,965)
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21. Matters Related to Employees’ Retirement Benefits as of 
March 31, 2014

(1) Overview of employees’ retirement benefit system
As a defined benefit plan for office-based employees, the Com-
pany has a defined benefit corporate pension plan and retire-

ment lump-sum grants. As a defined contribution plan for these 
employees, the Company also has a defined contribution pen-
sion plan.
 As a defined benefit plan for sales employees, the Compa-
ny has retirement lump-sum grants.

(2) Gross amount of retirement benefit expenses for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013 were as follows:
 　　　　Years ended March 31,

2012 2013
Millions of yen

Service cost .......................................................................................................................... ¥2,943 ¥2,866
Interest cost ......................................................................................................................... 1,451 1,456
Expected return on pension plan assets .............................................................................. (471) (515)
Amortization of actuarial differences .................................................................................... 1,218 1,361
Amortization of prior service cost ......................................................................................... (20) (38)

¥5,122 ¥5,131

(3) The assumptions used in calculation of the above information were as follows:

　　    　Years ended March 31,

2012 2013

Method of attributing the projected benefits to periods of service ...................................... Straight-line
basis

Straight-line
basis

Discount rate ........................................................................................................................ 2.0% 2.0%
Expected rate of return on pension plan assets ................................................................... 3.0% 3.0%
Amortization period of actuarial differences ......................................................................... 10 years 10 years
Amortization period of prior service cost .............................................................................. 10 years 10 years

(2)  Defined benefit plan
  i)  Reconciliation of beginning and end of balance of retirement benefit obligation
 As of March 31,

2014 2014

Millions of yen
Millions of 

U.S. dollars

Retirement benefit obligation at the beginning of current fiscal year ................................... ¥72,507	 $704
Service cost .......................................................................................................................... 2,838	 27
Interest cost ......................................................................................................................... 1,448	 14
Actuarial difference occurred during the fiscal year ............................................................. 171	 1
Retirement benefits payments ............................................................................................. (5,347) (51)
Retirement benefit obligation at the end of current fiscal year ............................................ ¥71,618	 $695

  ii)  Reconciliation of beginning and end of balance of pension plan assets
 As of March 31,

2014 2014

Millions of yen
Millions of 

U.S. dollars

Pension plan assets at the beginning of current fiscal year ................................................. ¥20,006	 $194
Expected return on pension plan assets .............................................................................. 600	 5
Actuarial difference occurred during the fiscal year ............................................................. 1,333	 12
Contributions by the employer ............................................................................................. 2,309	 22
Retirement benefits payments ............................................................................................. (1,405) (13)
Pension plan assets at the end of current fiscal year ........................................................... ¥22,844	 $221
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  iii)  Reconciliation of end of balance of retirement benefit obligation and pension plan assets with reserve for employees’ retirement 
benefits presented on the balance sheets

 As of March 31,

2014 2014

Millions of yen
Millions of 

U.S. dollars

a. Funded plan retirement benefit obligation ........................................................................ ¥		29,130	 $		283	
b. Pension plan assets .......................................................................................................... (22,844) (221)
c. (a+b)  ................................................................................................................................ 6,285 61
d. Unfunded plan retirement benefit obligation .................................................................... 42,487	 412	
e. Unrecognized actuarial differences .................................................................................. (6,212) (60)
f.  Unrecognized prior service cost ....................................................................................... 551	 5	
g. Reserve for employees’ retirement benefits (c+d+e+f) .................................................. ¥		43,112	 $		418

  iv)  Breakdown of retirement benefit gains and losses
 As of March 31,

2014 2014

Millions of yen
Millions of 

U.S. dollars

Service cost .......................................................................................................................... ¥2,838	 $27	
Interest cost ......................................................................................................................... 1,448	 14	
Expected return on pension plan assets .............................................................................. (600) (5)
Amortization of actuarial differences .................................................................................... 759	 7	
Amortization of prior service cost ......................................................................................... (47) (0)	
Retirement benefit expenses related to defined benefit plan .............................................. ¥4,399	 $42

  v)  Breakdown of main pension plan assets
The breakdown of main asset categories as a percentage of total pension plan assets is as follows:

As of March 31,   　

2014
Life insurance general account .................................................................................................................................. 45.2%

Domestic bonds ........................................................................................................................................................ 16.7%

Domestic stocks ........................................................................................................................................................ 16.7%

Foreign stocks ........................................................................................................................................................... 14.4%

Foreign bonds ............................................................................................................................................................ 6.1%

Cash and deposits ..................................................................................................................................................... 0.9%

Others ....................................................................................................................................................................... 0.0%

Total ........................................................................................................................................................................... 100.0%

  vi)  Method for setting the expected long-term rate of return

To set the expected long-term rate of return on pension plan 
assets, the Company takes into account the present and future 
allocation of pension plan assets, and the present and expected 
future long-term rate of return on the diverse range of assets 
that makes up the pension assets.

  vii)  Underlying actuarial assumptions

Main underlying actuarial assumptions as of March 31, 2014, 

were as follows:

◦ Discount rate ����������������� 2.0%

◦ Expected long-term rate of return on pension plan assets
　　　　　　　　����������������� 3.0%

(3) Defined contribution plan

The required contribution amount by the Company to the de-
fined contribution plan was ¥184 million (US$1 million).
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III. Notes to Statements of Operations

1. Transactions with Subsidiaries
The total amounts of revenues and expenditures in connection 
with subsidiaries were ¥966 million and ¥7,682 million for the 
year ended March 31, 2012, ¥1,427 million and ¥7,738 million 

for the year ended March 31, 2013, and ¥854 million (US$8 
million) and ¥8,351 million (US$81 million) for the year ended 
March 31, 2014, respectively.

2. Gains on Sales of Securities
Major items of gains on sales of securities were as follows:
 Years ended March 31,

 2012 2013 2014	 2014

  Millions of 
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Domestic bonds ......................................................................................... ¥11,747 ¥4,732 ¥17,369	 $168	
Domestic stocks and others ....................................................................... 3,780 2,220 13,029	 126
Foreign securities ....................................................................................... ¥  1,326 ¥   862 ¥  2,658	 $		25

3. Losses on Sales of Securities
Major items of losses on sales of securities were as follows:
 Years ended March 31,

 2012 2013 2014	 2014

  Millions of 
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Domestic bonds ......................................................................................... ¥  1,324 ¥1,208 ¥					32	 $		0
Domestic stocks and others ....................................................................... 17,027 5,729 3,617	 35
Foreign securities ....................................................................................... ¥  6,573 ¥3,429 ¥5,639	 $54

4. Losses on Valuation of Securities
Major items of losses on valuation of securities were as follows:
 Years ended March 31,

 2012 2013 2014	 2014

  Millions of 
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Domestic bonds ......................................................................................... ¥1,444 ¥     — ¥	—	 $	—
Domestic stocks and others ....................................................................... ¥6,017 ¥1,009 ¥ 52	 $		0

5. Policy Reserves for the Reinsurance Contracts
For the year ended March 31, 2012, reversal of reserve for out-
standing claims for ceded reinsurance considered in calculation 
of reversal of reserve for outstanding claims was ¥40 million and 
reversal of policy reserve for ceded reinsurance considered in 
calculation of provision for policy reserve was ¥1 million.
 For the year ended March 31, 2013, provision for reserve 
for outstanding claims for ceded reinsurance considered in 
calculation of provision for reserve for outstanding claims was 

¥0 million and reversal of policy reserve for ceded reinsurance 
considered in calculation of provision for policy reserve was ¥0 
million. 
 For the year ended March 31, 2014, provision for reserve 
for outstanding claims for ceded reinsurance considered in 
calculation of provision for reserve for outstanding claims was 
¥2 million (US$22 thousand) and provision for policy reserve for 
ceded reinsurance considered in calculation of reversal of policy 
reserve was ¥0 million (US$2 thousand).
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6. Gains (Losses) from Trading Securities
Major items of gains (losses) from trading securities were as follows:
 Years ended March 31,

 2012 2013 2014	 2014

  Millions of 
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Interest, dividends and other income ......................................................... ¥7,556 ¥  7,532 ¥	8,652	 $			84
Gains (Losses) on sales of trading securities ............................................. (977) 258 (0)	 (0)
Gains (Losses) on valuation of trading securities ....................................... 8,474 33,508 7,200	 69

7. Gains (Losses) from Money Held in Trust
Gains (Losses) from money held in trust for the years ended 
March 31, 2012 and 2013 included valuation gains of ¥0 million 
and valuation gains of ¥0 million, respectively.

8. Gains (Losses) from Derivative Instruments
Gains (Losses) from derivative instruments for the years ended 
March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014 included valuation losses of 
¥4,273 million, valuation gains of ¥1,774 million and valuation 
gains of ¥2,251 million (US$21 million), respectively. 

9. Impairment Losses of Fixed Assets
For the year ended March 31, 2013 and 2014, impairment losses 
of fixed assets were as follows:

(1) Method of grouping

Real estate and other assets used for insurance business opera-
tions are classified as one asset group as a whole. Other assets 
such as real estate for rent and unused real estate are classified 
as one group individually.     
 
(2) Background of recognizing the impairment losses

Profitability of certain real estate for rent dropped down signifi-
cantly due to a decrease in the level of rental income and a de-
clining trend of market prices of land. The Company reduced its 
book values of such real estate for rent and unused real estate 
to their recoverable amounts. The amounts reduced were recog-
nized as impairment losses and included in the extraordinary 
losses.

(3) Asset groups recognized impairment losses and losses by fixed assets
 Years ended March 31,

  2013 2014 2014

 Millions of 
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Real estate for rent:
 Land ��������������������������������  ¥183 ¥1,541	 $14
 Buildings and others �������������������������  26 140	 1

 Total real estate for rent (i) ����������������������  210 1,682	 16
Unused real estate:
 Land ��������������������������������  177 35	 0
 Buildings and others �������������������������  212 58	 0

 Total unused real estate (ii) ����������������������  390 93	 0

Total:
 Land ��������������������������������  361 1,577	 15
 Buildings and others �������������������������  239 198	 1

 Total (i)+(ii) �����������������������������  ¥600 ¥1,775	 $17
* Figures for March 31, 2013, are omitted owing to their minor level of importance.

(4) Calculation method of recoverable amount      

Recoverable amount is based on net sales value. Net sales value is determined based on appraisal value, posted price or road rate.
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Fukoku Mutual Life Insurance Company and consolidated subsidiaries
As of March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Financial Statements

 As of March 31,

2012 2013 2014 2014

Millions of 
U.S. dollarsMillions of yen

Assets:

Cash and deposits  ................................................................ ¥ 73,260 ¥ 72,868 ¥	 91,021	 $					884	

Call loans  .............................................................................. 65,600 70,300 148,700	 1,444

Monetary claims bought  ....................................................... 1,351 1,111 1,011	 9	

Money held in trust  .............................................................. 35,194 31,322 31,981	 310	

Securities  .............................................................................. 5,422,669 6,108,723 6,406,927	 62,251	

Loans  .................................................................................... 1,042,359 910,657 839,244	 8,154	

Tangible fixed assets:

     Land .................................................................................. 161,076 160,528 132,912	 1,291	

     Buildings ........................................................................... 110,051 105,882 95,148	 924	

     Lease assets ..................................................................... 117 1,430 1,159	 11	

     Construction in progress .................................................. 2,234 1,297 280	 2	

     Other tangible fixed assets ............................................... 3,348 3,089 2,992	 29	

276,828 272,228 232,492	 2,258	

 Intangible fixed assets:

     Software ........................................................................... 8,696 12,321 11,339	 110	

     Goodwill ............................................................................ 4,618 3,855 3,091	 30	

     Lease assets ..................................................................... 761 2,271 1,659	 16	

     Other intangible fixed assets ............................................ 453 279 279	 2	

14,529 18,727 16,369	 159	

Agency receivables ................................................................ 7 6 1	 0	

Reinsurance receivables  ....................................................... 123 56 94	 0	

Other assets  ......................................................................... 56,062 54,698 51,065	 496	

Deferred tax assets  .............................................................. 48,211 362 1,041	 10	

Allowance for possible loan losses  ....................................... (2,468) (2,201) (2,281) (22)	

Total	assets  .......................................................................... ¥7,033,729 ¥7,538,862 ¥7,817,668	 $75,958	

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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 As of March 31,

2012 2013 2014 2014

Millions of 
U.S. dollarsMillions of yen

Liabilities:

Policy reserves:

    Reserve for outstanding claims  ........................................ ¥ 24,149 ¥ 24,663 ¥	 25,170	 $					244	

    Policy reserve  ................................................................... 6,510,809 6,779,259 6,918,429	 67,221	

    Reserve for dividends to policyholders  ............................. 53,969 52,307 51,007	 495	

    Reserve for dividends to policyholders (subsidiary) ........... 648 697 735	 7	

6,589,577 6,856,928 6,995,343	 67,968	

Agency payables  ................................................................... 560 375 339	 3	

Reinsurance payables  ........................................................... 88 113 113	 1	

Subordinated bonds  .............................................................. 32,896 66,187 122,346	 1,188	

Other liabilities  ...................................................................... 50,593 53,918 57,036	 554	

Reserve for employees' retirement benefits  ........................ 46,384 45,153 — —

Net defined benefit liabilities ................................................. — — 48,840	 474	

Reserve for price fluctuation of securities  ............................ 38,183 46,625 50,325	 488	

Deferred tax liabilities  ........................................................... — 16,938 27,502	 267	

Deferred tax liabilities for revaluation reserve for land ..........  16,195 16,119 15,929	 154	

Total	liabilities		 .................................................................... 6,774,480 7,102,360 7,317,778	 71,101	

Net	assets:

Foundation funds  .................................................................. 35,000 35,000 35,000	 340	

Accumulated foundation funds redeemed  ........................... 71,000 71,000 71,000	 689	

Reserve for revaluation  ......................................................... 112 112 112	 1	

Consolidated surplus  ............................................................ 77,183 102,904 126,584	 1,229	

    Total foundation funds, surplus and others  ...................... 183,295 209,016 232,696	 2,260	

Net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale

  securities, net of tax  ........................................................... 68,806 219,719 263,161 2,556

Deferred valuation gains (losses)

  under hedge accounting  ..................................................... 170 62 2	 0	

Revaluation reserve for land, net of tax  ................................ 3,383 3,421 3,144	 30	

Foreign currency translation adjustment  .............................. (828) (635) (261) (2)

Accumulated remeasurements of defined benefit plans ...... — — (3,918) (38)

    Total accumulated other comprehensive income  ............. 71,532 222,569 262,127	 2,546	

Minority interests  ................................................................. 4,421 4,916 5,066	 49	

Total	net	assets  ................................................................... 259,249 436,502 499,890	 4,857	

Total	liabilities	and	net	assets	 ............................................ ¥7,033,729 ¥7,538,862 ¥7,817,668	 $75,958	

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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　　　　　Years ended  March 31,

2012 2013 2014 2014
Millions of 

U.S. dollarsMillions of yen

Ordinary	revenues:
Premium and other income  .................................................. ¥ 950,986 ¥ 862,225 ¥	707,044	 $6,869	
Investment income:
    Interest, dividends and other income ................................ 131,529 139,897 149,176	 1,449	
    Gains from money held in trust, net  ................................. 162 1,157 669	 6	
    Gains from trading securities, net  .................................... 12,872 38,498 19,402	 188	
    Gains on sales of securities  .............................................. 19,630 8,290 34,672	 336	
    Gains from redemption of securities ................................. 338 — — —	
    Foreign exchange gains, net  ............................................. — 907 2,214	 21	
    Reversal of allowance for possible loan losses ................. 57 — — —
    Other investment income  ................................................. 156 1,230 279	 2	
    Gains from separate accounts, net  ................................... 1,679 10,075 10,417	 101	
  166,427 200,056 216,832	 2,106	
Other ordinary revenues  ....................................................... 20,396 10,854 11,743	 114	
Total	ordinary	revenues  ..................................................... 1,137,810 1,073,135 935,620	 9,090	
Ordinary	expenditures:
Claims and other payments:
    Claims  ............................................................................... 142,771 171,223 138,689	 1,347	
    Annuities  ........................................................................... 95,211 101,713 135,437	 1,315	
    Benefits  ............................................................................ 133,356 136,427 131,069	 1,273	
    Surrenders  ........................................................................ 107,691 109,133 114,188	 1,109	
    Other payments  ................................................................ 26,800 32,179 33,444	 324	

505,831 550,677 552,830	 5,371	
Provision for policy reserve and others:
    Provision for reserve for outstanding claims  .................... — 514 507	 4	
    Provision for policy reserve  .............................................. 394,895 268,449 139,169	 1,352	
    Interest on accumulated dividends to policyholders  ........ 83 76 74	 0	
    Interest on accumulated dividends to 
      policyholders (subsidiary) ................................................. 0 0 0	 0	

394,979 269,040 139,752	 1,357	
Investment expenses:
    Interest expenses .............................................................. 1,423 1,801 3,655	 35	
    Losses on sales of securities  ........................................... 26,405 10,790 9,289	 90	
    Losses on valuation of securities  ..................................... 9,222 1,009 52	 0	
    Losses from derivative instruments, net  .......................... 5,725 34,773 25,116	 244	
    Foreign exchange losses, net  ........................................... 1,876 — — —
    Provision for allowance for possible loan losses  .............. — 74 56	 0	
    Depreciation of real estate for rent and other assets  ....... 6,477 5,802 5,082	 49	
    Other investment expenses  ............................................. 5,607 4,820 5,751	 55	

56,740 59,072 49,005	 476	
Operating expenses  ............................................................. 103,441 99,232 95,278	 925	
Other ordinary expenditures  ................................................. 22,985 22,244 22,313	 216	
Total	ordinary	expenditures 1,083,978 1,000,266 859,179	 8,348	
Ordinary	profits ¥     53,832    ¥     72,868 ¥	 76,441	 $	 742	

Fukoku Mutual Life Insurance Company and consolidated subsidiaries
For the years ended  March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014

Consolidated Statements of Operations
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Fukoku Mutual Life Insurance Company and consolidated subsidiaries
For the years ended March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014

　　　　　Years ended  March 31,

2012 2013 2014 2014
Millions of 

U.S. dollarsMillions of yen

Extraordinary	gains:
    Gains on disposal of fixed assets ...................................... ¥ 4,645 ¥ 60 ¥	 2,005	 $	 19	
    Gain on change in equity ................................................... 55 — — —
Total	extraordinary	gains  ................................................... 4,700 60 2,005	 19	
Extraordinary	losses:
    Losses on disposal of fixed assets  ................................... 161 395 7,314	 71	
    Impairment losses  ............................................................ 433 600 1,775	 17	
    Provision for reserve for price fluctuation of securities  .... 4,318 8,441 3,700	 35	
    Losses on reduction entry of real estate for tax purpose .. 9 — — —
    Other extraordinary losses  ............................................... — 2 — —
Total	extraordinary	losses   ................................................. 4,923 9,439 12,791	 124	
Provision	for	reserve	for	dividends	to	
			policyholders	(subsidiary)	  .............................................. 440 455 542	 5	
Surplus	before	income	taxes  ............................................. 53,168 63,034 65,112	 632	
Income	taxes:
    Current  .............................................................................. 9,859 15,138 20,867	 202	
    Deferred  ........................................................................... 14,823 (2,499) (7,773) (75)
Total	income	taxes  .............................................................. 24,683 12,639 13,093	 127	
Net	surplus	before	minority	interests  ............................... 28,485 50,395 52,019	 505	
Minority	interests  ................................................................ 93 128 236	 2	
Net	surplus	for	the	year  ..................................................... ¥28,391 ¥50,267 ¥51,782	 $503	

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.

 Years ended March 31,

2012 2013 2014 2014
Millions of 

U.S. dollarsMillions of yen

Net surplus before minority interests ..................................... ¥28,485 ¥  50,395 ¥52,019	 $505	
Other comprehensive income:
        Net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale 
            securities, net of tax ................................................... 58,955 151,291 43,367	 421	
        Deferred valuation gains (losses) under hedge 
           accounting ................................................................... (194) (107) (60) (0)	
        Revaluation reserve for land, net of tax .......................... 2,854 (17) 3	 0	
        Foreign currency translation adjustment ........................ (67) 193 373	 3	

61,548 151,359 43,684	 424	
Comprehensive income attributable to:
        Parent company .............................................................. 89,784 201,248 95,541	 928	
        Minority interests ........................................................... 248 507 162	 1	

¥90,033 ¥201,755 ¥95,703	 $929

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Fukoku Mutual Life Insurance Company and consolidated subsidiaries
For the years ended  March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

 Years ended  March 31,

2012 2013 2014 2014
Millions of 

U.S. dollarsMillions of yen

Cash	flows	from	operating	activities:
    Surplus before income taxes  .............................................. ¥ 53,168 ¥ 63,034 ¥						65,112	 $						632	
    Depreciation of real estate for rent and other assets  ......... 6,477 5,802 5,082	 49	
    Depreciation  ....................................................................... 5,802 6,528 7,109	 69	
    Impairment losses  .............................................................. 433 600 1,775	 17	
    Amortization of goodwill  ..................................................... 763 763 763	 7	
    Increase (decrease) in reserve for outstanding claims  ....... (8,643) 514 507	 4	
    Increase (decrease) in policy reserve  ................................. 394,895 268,449 139,169	 1,352	
    Interest on accumulated dividends to policyholders  .......... 83 76 74	 0	
    Interest on accumulated dividends  	
       to policyholders (subsidiary) ............................................. 0 0 0 0	
    Provision for reserve for dividends 
       to policyholders (subsidiary) ............................................. 440 455 542	 5		
    Increase (decrease) in allowance for possible loan losses  .... (196) (74) 80	 0
    Increase (decrease) in reserve for employees' 
       retirement benefits  .......................................................... (3,768) (1,231) — —
    Increase (decrease) in net defined benefit liabilities ............ — — (1,973) (19)
    Increase (decrease) in reserve for price 
       fluctuation of securities  ................................................... 4,318 8,441 3,700	 35	
    Interest, dividends and other income  ................................. (131,529) (139,897) (149,176) (1,449)
    (Gains) losses on securities  ................................................ 6,670 (11,447) (30,702) (298)
    Interest expenses  ............................................................... 1,423 1,801 3,655	 35	
    Foreign exchange (gains) losses, net  ................................. 1,876 (907) (2,214) (21)
    (Gains) losses on tangible fixed assets  ............................... (4,496) 174 5,130	 49	
    (Increase) decrease in agency receivables  ......................... (2) 0 5	 0	
    (Increase) decrease in reinsurance receivables  .................. 51 67 (37) (0)	
    (Increase) decrease in other assets except from 	
        investing and financing activities ..................................... (1,365) 145 (880) (8)
    Increase (decrease) in agency payables  ............................. (1,124) (184) (36) (0)		
    Increase (decrease) in reinsurance payables  ...................... (12) 24 (0) (0)	
    Increase (decrease) in other liabilities except from 
        investing and financing activities ..................................... 2,364 (1,494) (2,568) (24)
    Others  ................................................................................. 18,780 16,632 17,015	 165	
        Subtotal  .......................................................................... 346,411 218,275 62,135	 603	
    Interest, dividends and other income received  .................. 140,383 146,798 159,741	 1,552	
    Interest paid  ........................................................................ (1,439) (1,392) (3,430) (33)
    Dividends to policyholders paid  .......................................... (23,700) (25,727) (29,137) (283)
    Dividends to policyholders paid (subsidiary)  ....................... (446) (406) (504) (4)
    Corporate income tax (paid) refunded  ................................ (19,825) (7,647) (17,291) (168)
        Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (I)  .... 441,382 329,899 171,511	 1,666	
Cash	flows	from	investing	activities:
    (Increase) decrease in deposits  .......................................... 84 (191) (684) (6)
    Proceeds from sales and redemption of monetary 
       claims bought  .................................................................. 73 220 98	 0	
    Payments for increase in money held in trust  .................... (9,800) — (2,000) (19)
    Proceeds from decrease in money held in trust  ................. 7,929 5,034 1,999	 19	
    Payments for purchase of securities  .................................. (1,758,975) (1,048,127) (867,499) (8,428)
    Proceeds from sales and redemption of securities  ............ 1,066,150 638,224 700,791	 6,809	
    Payments for additions to loans  ......................................... (101,397) (94,197) (86,787) (843)
    Proceeds from collections of loans  .................................... 193,911 214,939 148,350	 1,441	
    Proceeds from settlement of derivatives  ........................... (9,825) (37,627) (21,671) (210)
    Others  ................................................................................. (2,328) (24,962) (20,399) (198)
        Subtotal (IIa)  .................................................................... (614,177) (346,686) (147,800) (1,436)
        (I+IIa) ............................................................................... ¥   (172,795) ¥    (16,787) ¥					23,710	 $						230
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 Years ended  March 31,

2012 2013 2014 2014
Millions of 

U.S. dollarsMillions of yen

    Payments for purchase of tangible fixed assets  ................. ¥ (3,226) ¥    (4,704) ¥	 (4,607) $					(44)
    Proceeds from sales of tangible fixed assets  ..................... 7,078 444 30,441	 295	
    Payments for purchase of intangible fixed assets ............... (2,225) (3,616) (2,777) (26)
    Proceeds from sales of intangible fixed assets ................... — 173 — —
    Payments for stocks of subsidiaries and affiliates 
      with change of scope of consolidation  ............................. — (330) — —
        Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities  ......... (612,551) (354,721) (124,744) (1,212)
Cash	flows	from	financing	activities:
    Financing of subordinated bonds  ........................................ — 30,000 49,870	 484	
    Financing of additional foundation funds  ............................ 20,000 — — —
    Redemption of foundation funds  ........................................ (25,000) — — —
    Interest payment for foundation funds  ............................... (892) (621) (621) (6)
    Proceeds from stock issuance to minority shareholders ..... 1,999 — — —
    Dividends paid to minority interests .................................... (12) (12) (12) (0)	
    Payments for lease obligations ............................................ (252) (518) (752) (7)
        Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities  ......... (4,157) 28,847 48,483	 471	
Effect	of	exchange	rate	changes	on	cash	and	
   cash	equivalents  ................................................................ (108) 67 526	 5	
Net	increase	(decrease)	in	cash	and	cash	equivalents	 ...... (175,434) 4,091 95,777	 930	
Cash	and	cash	equivalents	at	the	beginning	of	the	year	 .. 313,939 138,504 142,596	 1,385	
Cash	and	cash	equivalents	at	the	end	of	the	year	 ............. ¥   138,504 ¥  142,596 ¥		238,373	 $		2,316	

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets 
Fukoku Mutual Life Insurance Company and consolidated subsidiaries
For the years ended  March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014

Millions of yen

Foundation funds, surplus and others

Year ended March 31, 2012
Foundation  

funds
Accumulated foundation 

funds redeemed
Reserve for  
revaluation

Consolidated  
surplus

Total foundation funds, 
surplus and others

Balance at the beginning of current fiscal year ............... ¥40,000 ¥46,000 ¥112 ¥98,228 ¥184,340 

Changes in the current fiscal year

Financing of additional foundation funds  ................... 20,000 20,000 

Additions to reserve for dividends to policyholders .... (24,381) (24,381)

Additions to accumulated foundation  
funds redeemed ....................................................... 25,000 25,000 

Payment of interest on foundation funds ................... (892) (892)

Net surplus for the year .............................................. 28,391 28,391 

Redemption of foundation funds ................................ (25,000) (25,000)

Reversal of reserve for redemption of  
foundation funds....................................................... (25,000) (25,000)

Reversal of revaluation reserve for land ..................... 837 837 

Net changes, excluding foundation funds,  
surplus and others ....................................................

Total changes in the current fiscal year .......................... (5,000) 25,000 — (21,045) (1,045)

Balance at the end of current fiscal year ........................ ¥35,000 ¥71,000 ¥112 ¥77,183 ¥183,295 

Millions of yen

Year ended March 31, 2012

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Minority  
interests

Total  
net assets

Net unrealized 
gains (losses)  on 
available-for-sale 

securities,  
net of tax

Deferred 
valuation 

gains (losses) 
under hedge 
accounting

Revaluation 
reserve for land, 

net of tax

Foreign currency 
translation 
adjustment

Accumulated  
remeasurements 

of defined  
benefit plans

Total  
accumulated  

other  
comprehensive 

income

Balance at the beginning of  
current fiscal year .................................. ¥10,006 ¥365 ¥1,366 ¥(761) ¥  — ¥10,977 ¥2,378 ¥197,696 

Changes in the current fiscal year
Financing of additional  

foundation funds ............................... 20,000 

Additions to reserve for  
dividends to policyholders ................. (24,381)

Additions to accumulated foundation 
funds redeemed ................................ 25,000 

Payment of interest on  
foundation funds................................ (892)

Net surplus for the year ....................... 28,391 

Redemption of foundation funds ......... (25,000)

Reversal of reserve for  
redemption of foundation funds ........ (25,000)

Reversal of revaluation  
reserve for land.................................. 837 

Net changes, excluding foundation 
funds, surplus and others .................. 58,799 (194) 2,016 (67) — 60,555 2,043 62,598 

Total changes in the current  
fiscal year............................................... 58,799 (194) 2,016 (67) — 60,555 2,043 61,553 

Balance at the end of current  
fiscal year............................................... ¥68,806 ¥170 ¥3,383 ¥(828) ¥  — ¥71,532 ¥4,421 ¥259,249 
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Millions of yen

Foundation funds, surplus and others

Year ended March 31, 2013
Foundation  

funds
Accumulated foundation 

funds redeemed
Reserve for  
revaluation

Consolidated  
surplus

Total foundation funds, 
surplus and others

Balance at the beginning of current fiscal year ............... ¥35,000 ¥71,000 ¥112 ¥77,183 ¥183,295 

Changes in the current fiscal year

Additions to reserve for dividends to policyholders .... (23,989) (23,989)

Payment of interest on foundation funds ................... (621) (621)

Net surplus for the year .............................................. 50,267 50,267 

Reversal of revaluation reserve for land ..................... (55) (55)

Change of scope of consolidation .............................. 120 120 

Net changes, excluding foundation funds,  
surplus and others ....................................................

Total changes in the current fiscal year .......................... — — — 25,721 25,721 

Balance at the end of current fiscal year ........................ ¥35,000 ¥71,000 ¥112 ¥102,904 ¥209,016 

Millions of yen

Year ended March 31, 2013

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Minority  
interests

Total  
net assets

Net unrealized 
gains (losses)  on 
available-for-sale 

securities,  
net of tax

Deferred 
valuation 

gains (losses) 
under hedge 
accounting

Revaluation 
reserve for land, 

net of tax

Foreign currency 
translation 
adjustment

Accumulated  
remeasurements 

of defined  
benefit plans

Total  
accumulated  

other  
comprehensive 

income

Balance at the beginning of  
current fiscal year .................................. ¥68,806 ¥170 ¥3,383 ¥(828) ¥  — ¥71,532 ¥4,421 ¥259,249 

Changes in the current fiscal year

Additions to reserve for  
dividends to policyholders ................. (23,989)

Payment of interest on  
foundation funds................................ (621)

Net surplus for the year ....................... 50,267 

Reversal of revaluation  
reserve for land.................................. (55)

Change of scope of consolidation ....... 120 

Net changes, excluding foundation 
funds, surplus and others .................. 150,912 (107) 38 193 — 151,036 495 151,531 

Total changes in the current  
fiscal year............................................... 150,912 (107) 38 193 — 151,036 495 177,252 

Balance at the end of current  
fiscal year............................................... ¥219,719 ¥62 ¥3,421 ¥(635) ¥  — ¥222,569 ¥4,916 ¥436,502 
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Millions of yen

Foundation funds, surplus and others

Year ended March 31, 2014
Foundation 

funds
Accumulated foundation 

funds redeemed
Reserve for 
revaluation

Consolidated 
surplus

Total foundation funds, 
surplus and others

Balance at the beginning of current fiscal year ............... ¥35,000 ¥71,000 ¥112 ¥102,904 ¥209,016 

Changes in the current fiscal year

Additions to reserve for dividends to policyholders .... (27,762) (27,762)

Payment of interest on foundation funds ................... (621) (621)

Net surplus for the year .............................................. 51,782 51,782 

Reversal of revaluation reserve for land ..................... 281 281 

Net changes, excluding foundation funds,  
surplus and others ....................................................

Total changes in the current fiscal year .......................... — — — 23,679 23,679 

Balance at the end of current fiscal year ........................ ¥35,000 ¥71,000 ¥112 ¥126,584 ¥232,696 

Millions of yen

Year ended March 31, 2014

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Minority  
interests

Total  
net assets

Net unrealized 
gains (losses)  on 
available-for-sale 

securities,  
net of tax

Deferred 
valuation 

gains (losses) 
under hedge 
accounting

Revaluation 
reserve for land, 

net of tax

Foreign currency 
translation 
adjustment

Accumulated  
remeasurements 

of defined  
benefit plans

Total  
accumulated  

other  
comprehensive 

income

Balance at the beginning of  
current fiscal year .................................. ¥219,719 ¥62 ¥3,421 ¥(635) ¥ — ¥222,569 ¥4,916 ¥436,502 

Changes in the current fiscal year

Additions to reserve for  
dividends to policyholders ................. (27,762)

Payment of interest on  
foundation funds................................ (621)

Net surplus for the year ....................... 51,782 

Reversal of revaluation  
reserve for land.................................. 281 

Net changes, excluding foundation 
funds, surplus and others .................. 43,441 (60) (277) 373 (3,918) 39,558 149 39,708 

Total changes in the current  
fiscal year............................................... 43,441 (60) (277) 373 (3,918) 39,558 149 63,388 

Balance at the end of current  
fiscal year............................................... ¥263,161 ¥2 ¥3,144 ¥(261) ¥(3,918) ¥262,127 ¥5,066 ¥499,890 
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Millions of U.S. dollars

Foundation funds, surplus and others

Year ended March 31, 2014
Foundation 

funds
Accumulated foundation 

funds redeemed
Reserve for 
revaluation

Consolidated 
surplus

Total foundation funds, 
surplus and others

Balance at the beginning of current fiscal year ............... $340 $689 $1 $999 $2,030 

Changes in the current fiscal year

Additions to reserve for dividends to policyholders .... (269) (269)

Payment of interest on foundation funds ................... (6) (6)

Net surplus for the year .............................................. 503 503 

Reversal of revaluation reserve for land ..................... 2 2 

Net changes, excluding foundation funds,  
surplus and others ....................................................

Total changes in the current fiscal year .......................... — — — 230 230 

Balance at the end of current fiscal year ........................ $340 $689 $1 $1,229 $2,260 

Millions of U.S. dollars

Year ended March 31, 2014

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Minority  
interests

Total  
net assets

Net unrealized 
gains (losses)  on 
available-for-sale 

securities,  
net of tax

Deferred 
valuation 

gains (losses) 
under hedge 
accounting

Revaluation 
reserve for land, 

net of tax

Foreign currency 
translation 
adjustment

Accumulated  
remeasurements 

of defined  
benefit plans

Total  
accumulated  

other  
comprehensive 

income

Balance at the beginning of  
current fiscal year .................................. $2,134 $0 $33 $(6) $ — $2,162 $47 $4,241 

Changes in the current fiscal year

Additions to reserve for  
dividends to policyholders ................. (269)

Payment of interest on  
foundation funds................................ (6)

Net surplus for the year ....................... 503 

Reversal of revaluation  
reserve for land.................................. 2 

Net changes, excluding foundation 
funds, surplus and others .................. 422 (0) (2) 3 (38) 384 1 385 

Total changes in the current  
fiscal year............................................... 422 (0) (2) 3 (38) 384 1 615 

Balance at the end of current  
fiscal year............................................... $2,556 $0 $30 $(2) $(38) $2,546 $49 $4,857 
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I. Presentation of the Consolidated Financial 
   Statements

1. Basis of Presentation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared from the accounts maintained by Fukoku Mutual Life 
Insurance Company (the "Company") and its consolidated subsid-
iaries in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Insurance 
Business Law of Japan and its related rules and regulations and in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, 
which are different in certain respects from accounting principles 
generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than Japan.
 In addition, the notes to the consolidated financial state-
ments include information which is not required under account-
ing principles generally accepted in Japan but is presented 
herein as additional information.
 Amounts of less than one million yen have been eliminated. 
As a result, total in yen shown herein do not necessarily agree 
with the sum of the individual amounts.

2. U.S. Dollar Amounts
The translations of yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts are includ-
ed solely for the convenience of the reader and have been made, 
as a matter of arithmetical computation only, at the rate of ¥102.92 
= US$1.00, the effective rate of exchange at the balance sheet 
date of March 31, 2014. The translations should not be construed 
as representations that such yen amounts have been or could in 
the future be, converted into U.S. dollars at that or any other rates.

3. Principles of Consolidation
(1) Scope of consolidation

Consolidated subsidiaries for the year ended March 31, 2012 are 
listed below:

Fukoku Shinyo Hosho Company Limited.
Fukoku Capital Management, Inc.
Fukokushinrai Life Insurance Company
Fukoku Information Systems Co., Ltd.
Fukoku Life International (U.K.) Limited
Fukoku Life International (America) Inc.

Consolidated subsidiaries for the year ended March 31, 2013 
and 2014 are listed below:

Fukoku Capital Management, Inc.
Fukokushinrai Life Insurance Company
Fukoku Information Systems Co., Ltd.
Fukoku Life International (U.K.) Limited
Fukoku Life International (America) Inc.

 Effective for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013, owing to 
the sale of all shares of Fukoku Shinyo Hosho Company Limited, 
on the October 31, 2012, the Company excluded it from scope 
of consolidation.
 Major unconsolidated subsidiary is Fukoku Seimei Building 
Company Limited. 

 Seven subsidiaries are excluded from the scope of consoli-
dation, as each one of them is small in its total assets, amount 
of sales, net surplus for the year and surplus and is sufficiently 
insignificant to reasonable judgement on its impact on the finan-
cial position and results of operation of the Company's group.

(2) Application of equity method

Unconsolidated subsidiaries (such as Fukoku Seimei Building 
Company Limited, etc.) are insignificant in their impact on net 
surplus and surplus, and also immaterial as a whole, therefore, 
application of equity method is withheld.
 There are no affiliates for the years ended March 31, 2012, 
2013 and 2014.

(3) Fiscal year of consolidated subsidiaries

Among the subsidiaries to be consolidated, fiscal year-end of 
overseas subsidiaries is December 31. For the preparation of 
consolidated financial statements, financial statements as of 
that date are used and concerning any important transaction tak-
ing place in between December 31 and the consolidated closing 
date, necessary adjustments for consolidation are made.

(4) Amortization of goodwill

Goodwill is amortized by the straight-line method over a period 
of 10 years and in case of the immaterial amount of goodwill, 
such amount is fully charged to operating expenses when in-
curred.

(5) Valuation of subsidiary's assets and liabilities on acquisition

On acquisition of a subsidiary, all of the subsidiary’s assets and 
liabilities that exist at the date of acquisition are recorded at their 
fair value.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3 of the said Law:
Calculation is based on the appraisal value for property tax set 
forth in Article 2 item 3 of the Enforcement Ordinance of the 
Law for Revaluation of Land (Government Ordinance No.119 
promulgated on March 31, 1998) and the road rate set forth in 
Article 2 item 4 of the said Ordinance with certain reasonable 
adjustments.

(4) Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Depreciation of the Company's tangible fixed assets is calcu-
lated by the following methods.
  Tangible fixed assets (excluding lease assets):Declining-bal-
ance method
However, buildings (excluding building attachments and struc-
tures) acquired on or after April 1, 1998 are depreciated using 
Straight-line method.

  Lease assets related to finance lease transactions that do not 
transfer ownership: Straight-line method over the lease term 
without residual value

Other tangible fixed assets acquired for ¥100,000 or more but 
less than ¥200,000 are depreciated equally over three years.

(5) Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities are trans-
lated into Japanese yen at the effective exchange rate prevailing 
at the balance sheet date. 

(6) Allowance for possible loan losses

Allowance for possible loan losses is provided in accordance 
with the Company's standards of self-assessment and write-offs 
and reserves on credit quality:

i) For the credits of borrowers who are legally bankrupt such 
as being in the proceedings of bankruptcy or civil rehabilita-
tion (hereinafter called "legally bankrupt borrowers") and who 
are substantially bankrupt (hereinafter called "substantially 
bankrupt borrowers"), the Company provides the remaining 
amount of credits after the direct write-off described below 
and the deductions of the amount expected to be collected 
through the disposal of collateral or the execution of guaran-
tees.

ii) For the credits of borrowers who are not currently bankrupt  
but have a high possibility of bankruptcy (hereinafter called 
“not currently bankrupt borrowers”), the Company provides 
the amounts deemed as necessary considering the borrow-
ers' ability to pay, within the amounts after deductions of the 
amount expected to be collected through the disposal of col-
lateral or the execution of guarantees.

iii) For the credits of borrowers other than the above, the Compa-
ny provides the amounts calculated by multiplying the borrow-
ers' balance by the actual ratio of bad debt losses on defaults 
during a certain past period.

II. Notes to Balance Sheets

1. Significant Accounting Policies
(1) Valuation methods of securities

The valuation of securities, including bank deposits and mon-
etary claims bought which are equivalent to securities, and 
securities managed as trust assets in money held in trust, is as 
follows:

i) Trading securities are stated at fair market value. Costs of 
their sales are determined by the moving average method.

ii) Held-to-maturity debt securities are stated at amortized cost 
under the straight-line method, cost being determined by the 
moving average method.

iii) Policy-reserve-matching bonds are stated at amortized cost 
under the straight-line method, cost being determined by 
the moving average method in accordance with “Temporary 
Treatment of Accounting and Auditing Concerning Policy-re-
serve-matching Bonds in Insurance Industry” (Industry Audit 
Committee Report No.21 issued by the Japanese Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants on November 16, 2000).

iv) Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates 
which are not accounted for under the equity method are 
stated at cost, cost being determined by the moving average 
method.

v) Available-for-sale securities with fair market value are stated 
at fair market value based on the market prices at the end of 
fiscal year. Costs of their sales are determined by the mov-
ing average method. Net unrealized gains or losses on these 
available-for-sale securities, net of taxes, are recorded as a 
separate component of net assets.
      Available-for-sale securities whose fair values are 
deemed extremely difficult to obtain are stated at cost, cost 
being determined by the moving average method, except for 
public and corporate bonds including foreign bonds, of which 
the difference between acquisition cost and face value is 
considered to be an adjustment of interest. Such bonds are 
stated at amortized cost under the straight-line method, cost 
being determined by the moving average method.

(2) Valuation methods of derivative instruments

Derivative instruments are stated at fair market value.

(3) Revaluation of land

The Company revalued the land for business purposes based 
on the Law for Revaluation of Land (Law No.34 promulgated on 
March 31, 1998). The difference between fair value and book 
value resulting from the revaluation, net of related taxes, is re-
corded as revaluation reserve for land as a separate component 
of net assets and the related tax is recorded as deferred tax 
liabilities for revaluation reserve for land.
  Date of revaluation: March 31, 2002
  Method of revaluation as prescribed for in Article 3 Paragraph 
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All credits are assessed by the relevant departments in accor-
dance with the Company’s standards of self-assessment on 
credit quality. The results of the assessment are reviewed by 
the audit department, which is independent of business-related 
divisions. Subsequently, the allowance for possible loan losses 
are provided based on the results of these assessments.
 For the credits of legally bankrupt borrowers and substan-
tially bankrupt borrowers, the amounts remaining after deduc-
tions of collateral value or the amounts collectible through the 
execution of guarantees is written-off directly from the bor-
rower’s balance as the estimated uncollectible amounts. The 
amounts written-off as of March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014 were 
¥332 million, ¥308 million and ¥271 million (US$2 million), re-
spectively.

(7) Accounting of employees’ retirement benefits

Net defined benefit liabilities are presented for the employees’ 
retirement benefits after deducting pension plan assets from 
retirement benefit obligations, based on estimated amounts as 
of the balance sheet date.
 The Company uses the following methods of accounting in 
relation to retirement benefits.
◦ Method for allocation of projected retirement benefits
　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　����� Straight-line basis
◦ Amortization period of actuarial differences ��� 10 years
◦ Amortization period of prior service cost ����� 10 years

(8) Reserve for price fluctuation of securities

Reserve for price fluctuation of securities is calculated in accor-
dance with Article 115 of the Insurance Business Law.

(9) Lease transactions as a lessee
Finance lease transactions that do not transfer ownership to the 
lessee whose commencement day was on or before March 31, 
2008 continued to be accounted for in a manner similar to ac-
counting treatment for ordinary rental transactions.

(10) Lease transactions as a lessor
As for the finance lease transactions where the Company is a 
lessor, the lease fee is recorded in “interest, dividends and other 
income (other interest and dividends)” at the time of receiving 
lease fee. The corresponding cost of the lease transactions is 
recorded in “other investment expenses,” which is calculated 
by deducting an amount equivalent to the interest allocated over 
the lease term from the lease fee received.

(11) Accounting for hedge activities

Hedge accounting is based on "Accounting Standards for 
Financial Instruments" (ASBJ Statement No. 10 issued by the 
Accounting Standards Board of Japan on August 11, 2006).
 For the foreign currency forward contracts against the 
exchange rate fluctuations in the value of foreign currency-de-
nominated bonds classified as available-for-sale securities, which 

qualify for hedge accounting because of high correlation and 
effectiveness between the hedging instruments and the hedged 
items, valuation gains and losses on the foreign currency for-
ward contracts are recorded in the statements of operations.
 For the interest rate swaps against the interest rate fluc-
tuations regarding loans, which qualify for hedge accounting 
because of high correlation and effectiveness between the 
hedging instruments and the hedged items, valuation gains and 
losses on the interest rate swaps are deferred until the maturity 
of the hedged transactions.
 The Company applies foreign currency swap appropriated 
treatment as a hedge for the foreign exchange fluctuation risk 
associated with foreign currency denominated bonds issued by 
the Company.
 For judging the effectiveness of hedge used, ratio analysis 
of comparing the fluctuations in the fair value or cash flows of 
hedged items and hedging instruments is mostly applied.

(12) Accounting for consumption taxes

The Company accounts for consumption taxes by the tax-exclu-
sion method. The consumption taxes on certain assets, which 
are not deductible from consumption taxes withheld and that 
are stipulated to be deferred under the Tax Law, are deferred 
as prepaid expenses and amortized equally over five years. 
Consumption taxes other than deferred consumption taxes are 
recognized as an expense when incurred.

(13) Policy reserve

Policy reserve is based on Article 116 of the Insurance Business 
Law, and the premium reserve at the end of fiscal year is calcu-
lated by the following method:
 In regard to the policies subject to the standard policy 
reserve, the method as prescribed by the Commissioner of Fi-
nancial Services Agency (Ministry of Finance Ordinance No. 48, 
1996) is applied.
 In regard to the policies not subject to the standard policy 
reserve, the net level premium method is applied.
 Based on the provision of paragraph 5, Article 69 of the 
Enforcement Regulation of the Insurance Business Law, the 
Company’s certain individual annuity insurance policies, certain 
hospitalization riders with surgery benefits and long-term hospi-
talization benefits, and non-participating educational insurance 
have funded policy reserves included.

(14) Amortization method for intangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets are amortized as follows:
i) Software

Software for internal use is amortized based on a straight-line 
method over the estimated useful lives.

ii) Lease assets
Lease assets are amortized based on a straight-line method 
over the lease term.
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(15) Deferred assets

Discount on bonds is amortized equally over the period for 
which interest on bonds is fixed. This amount is deducted from 
bonds.

(16) Policy-reserve-matching bonds

Of the bonds corresponding to the sub-groups of individual 
insurance and annuities which are set by insurance types and 
investment policies, the bonds that are held to match the dura-
tion of liabilities are classified by the Company as policy-reserve-
matching bonds in accordance with “Temporary Treatment of 
Accounting and Auditing Concerning Policy-reserve-matching 
Bonds in Insurance Industry” (Industry Audit Committee Report 
No. 21 issued by the Japanese Institute of Certified Public Ac-
countants on November 16, 2000).
 The amounts of policy-reserve-matching bonds recorded 
on the balance sheets and the market value of these bonds as 
of March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014 were written in Notes No. 4 
“Financial Instruments.”

2. Accounting Changes and Error Corrections and Its Imple-
mentation

(1) Effective from the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014, in 
accordance with the “Accounting Standard for Retirement 
Benefits” (Accounting Standards Board of Japan (ASBJ) 
Statement No. 26, May 17, 2012, excluding the provision 
of article 35) and the “Guidance on Accounting Standard 
for Retirement Benefits” (ASBJ Guidance No. 25, May 17, 
2012, excluding the provision of article 67), the Company 
has changed its method of presenting net defined benefit 
liabilities. These liabilities are presented after deducting pen-
sion plan assets from retirement benefit obligations. Unrec-
ognized actuarial differences and unrecognized prior service 
cost are presented within net defined benefit liabilities.

  As of March 31, 2014, in accordance with transitional 
treatment as stipulated in article 37 of the Accounting Stan-
dard for Retirement Benefits, the impact of the changes in 
accounting policies is included in accumulated remeasure-
ments of defined benefit plans in accumulated other com-
prehensive income.

As a result, the Company recognized ¥48,840 million 
(US$ 474 million) as net defined benefit liabilities, and accu-
mulated other comprehensive income decreased by ¥3,918 
million (US$ 38 million).

3. The Principal Accounting Standards Published before 
March 31, 2014 but not Applied are as follows.

(1) With the publication of the “Accounting Standard for 
Retirement Benefits” (ASBJ Statement No. 26, May 17, 2012) 
and “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Retirement 
Benefits” (ASBJ Guidance No. 25, May 17, 2012),the method 
for calculating retirement benefit obligations, current service 
cost and others will be changed. 

  Compulsory application of this standard is from the 
commencement of fiscal years beginning on or after April 
1, 2014. The Company plans to apply this standard from the 
start of the fiscal year ending March 31, 2015.

  The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries are 
currently evaluating the impact in the consolidated fiscal 
years after the application of the standards.

(2)  With the publication of the “Revised Accounting Standard 
for Business Combinations” (Accounting Standards Board of 
Japan (ASBJ) Statement No. 21, September 13, 2013), the 
“Revised Guidance on Accounting Standard for Business 
Combinations and Accounting Standard for Business 
Divestitures” (ASBJ Guidance No.10, September 13, 2013), 
and the “Revised Accounting Standard for Consolidated 
Financial Statements” (ASBJ Statement No. 22, September 
13, 2013), the accounting treatment for handling amount 
differences stemming from changes in a parent company’s 
ownership interest in a subsidiary when the parent company 
retains control over the subsidiary as well as the treatment 
of acquisition-related costs in a business combination were 
revised. In addition, the names of items presented in the 
consolidated financial statements were revised. 

  Compulsory application of these standards is from the 
commencement of fiscal years beginning on or after April 
1, 2015. The Company plans to apply this standard from the 
start of the fiscal year ending March 31, 2016. 

  The Company is currently evaluating the impact in 
the consolidated fiscal years after the application of these 
standards.

4. Financial Instruments
Asset management of the Company’s general accounts other 
than the separate accounts stipulated in Article 118 Paragraph 1 
of the Insurance Business Law is conducted on the principle of 
prudent and profitable investments, considering public and social 
responsibilities of the insurance business. Based on this policy, 
the Company allocates the fund, securing its liquidity, from the 
medium-to-long term viewpoints. The Company is diversifying 
investments in assets such as foreign securities and equity 
securities within the acceptable range of risk in order to enhance 
the profitability, although yen-denominated interest bearing 
assets including debt securities such as Japanese government 
bonds and loans are the cores of the portfolios. Derivatives are 
mainly used to mitigate the market risk regarding the securities 
and loans. Major financial instruments including securities, loans 
and derivatives are exposed to market risk and credit risk.

The Company manages its asset management risk by 
establishing internal control systems including various rules 
pursuant to the “Three Basic Rules related to Enterprise 
Risk Management” established by the Board of Directors. 
Specifically, the Company eliminates excessive risk deviating 
from the basic principle and secures the safety of the assets 
by utilizing control functions of the Financial and Investment 
Risk Management Department towards the asset management 
sections, monitoring the status of market risk and credit risk 
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periodically on a daily or monthly basis. In addition, the Company 
quantifies the market risk and credit risk using value-at-risk (VaR) 
method in order to control the possible maximum losses which 
may arise from the holding assets within a certain range of risk 
buffers.

The carrying amounts, fair values and their related 
differences of major financial assets and liabilities as of March 
31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, were as follows:

(1) Cash, deposits (excluding financial instruments treated as 
securities based on “Accounting Standards for Financial 
Instruments” (ASBJ Statement No.10)) and call loans:

  The fair values of cash, deposits and call loans are 
based on their book values since fair values approximate 
book values due to their short maturities.

  Carrying amounts, fair values and related differences 
of cash, deposits and call loans have been disclosed as of 
March 31, 2014 since the materiality has increased.

(2) Securities including deposits and monetary claims bought  
which are treated as securities based on “Accounting Stan-
dards for Financial Instruments” (ASBJ Statement No.10) and 
securities managed as trust assets in money held in trust:

 The fair values of marketable securities are measured at the 

　　As of March 31,
2014 2014

Millions of yen Millions of U.S. dollars
Carrying
amount Fair value Difference

Carrying
amount Fair value Difference

Cash and deposits:
Cash and deposits not treated as securities ......................... ¥					90,886 ¥					90,886 ¥									— $							883	 $							883	 $								—
Total cash and deposits ........................................................ 90,886 90,886 — 883	 883	 —

Call loans .................................................................................... 	148,700 148,700 — 1,444	 1,444	 —
Monetary claims bought:

Claims treated as loans ......................................................... 1,011 1,054 43
	
9	

	
10	

	
0	

Total monetary claims bought ...............................................
Money held in trust:

Trading securities ..................................................................

1,011

30,981

1,054

30,981

43

—

9	
	

301	

10	
	

301	

0	
	

—
Total money held in trust ......................................................

Securities:
Trading securities ..................................................................
Held-to-maturity debt securities ............................................
Policy-reserve-matching bonds .............................................
Available-for-sale securities ...................................................

30,981

271,060
1,265,332
2,071,506
2,704,248

30,981

271,060
1,379,802
2,214,902
2,704,248

—

—
114,470
143,395

—

301	
	

2,633	
12,294	
20,127	
26,275	

301	
	

2,633	
13,406	
21,520	
26,275	

—
	

—
1,112	
1,393	

—
Total securities ......................................................................

Loans:
Policy loans ...........................................................................
Ordinary loans .......................................................................

6,312,148

68,590
770,654

6,570,014

68,590
793,401

257,865

(0)
22,747

61,330	
	

666	
7,487	

63,836	
	

666	
7,708	

2,505	
	

(0)	
221	

Total loans ............................................................................. 839,244 861,991 22,747 8,154	 8,375	 221	
Assets total ................................................................................. 7,422,971 7,703,628 280,656 72,123	 74,850	 2,726	
Subordinated bonds*1 ................................................................ 122,346 126,900 4,554 1,188	 1,233	 44	
Liabilities total ............................................................................. 122,346 126,900 4,554 1,188	 1,233	 44	
Derivative instruments*2:

Hedge accounting not applied ..............................................
Hedge accounting applied .....................................................

(1,920)
(2,423)

(1,920)
(2,423)

—
—

	
(18)
(23)

	
(18)
(23)

	
—
—

Total derivative instruments .................................................. ¥						(4,343) ¥							(4,343) ¥									— $							(42) $							(42) $								—
*1  The fair value of derivative instruments that are currency swaps under designated hedge accounting is included in the fair value of subordinated bonds because it is accounted for as an integral 

part of the subordinated bonds that are the hedge items.
*2  Assets and liabilities generated by derivative instruments are offset and presented net. Net liabilities in total are presented in brackets.

　　As of March 31,

2012 2013
Millions of yen

Carrying
amount Fair value Difference

Carrying
amount Fair value Difference

Monetary claims bought:
 Claims treated as loans ......................................................... ¥       1,351 ¥       1,374 ¥       23 ¥       1,111 ¥       1,136 ¥         25
 Total monetary claims bought ...............................................
Money held in trust:
 Trading securities ..................................................................

1,351 

34,194

1,374

34,194

23

—

1,111

30,322

1,136

30,322

25

—
 Total money held in trust ......................................................
Securities:
 Trading securities ..................................................................
 Held-to-maturity debt securities ............................................
 Policy-reserve-matching bonds .............................................
 Available-for-sale securities ...................................................

34,194 

214,053 
1,179,852 
1,461,155 
2,479,204

34,194 

214,053 
1,218,634 
1,522,287 
2,479,204

—

—
38,781 
61,132

—

30,322 

258,193 
1,230,032 
1,888,162 
2,640,657

30,322 

258,193 
1,348,605 
2,036,166 
2,640,657

—

—
118,573 
148,003

—
 Total securities ......................................................................
Loans:
 Policy loans ...........................................................................
 Ordinary loans .......................................................................

5,334,265 

73,176 
969,182

5,434,179 

73,176 
995,689

99,914

(0)
26,506

6,017,045 

69,956 
840,701

6,283,622 

69,956 
866,908

266,577 

(0)
26,207

 Total loans .............................................................................
Derivative instruments:
 Hedge accounting not applied...............................................
 Hedge accounting applied .....................................................

1,042,359 

(1,442)
(3,506)

1,068,865 

(1,442)
(3,506)

26,506

—
—

910,657 

331 
(795)

936,865 

331 
(795)

26,207

—
—

 Total derivative instruments .................................................. ¥      (4,948) ¥      (4,948) ¥       — ¥         (463) ¥         (463) ¥        —
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quoted market price at the end of fiscal year. The fair values 
of other securities without the quoted market price are 
based on the prices reasonably calculated such as the prices 
offered by the information vendors or counterparty financial 
institutions.

       Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates, 
unlisted stocks and investments in partnerships whereby 
partnership assets consist of unlisted stocks whose fair 
values are deemed extremely difficult to obtain, are excluded 
from above securities. The carrying amounts of investments 
in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates, unlisted stocks 
and investments in partnerships were ¥398 million, ¥8,086 
million and ¥7,729 million as of March 31, 2012, ¥519 million, 
¥7,738 million and ¥7,667 million as of March 31, 2013, and 
¥519 million (US$5 million), ¥7,653 million (US$74 million) 
and ¥7,967 million (US$77 million) as of March 31, 2014, 
respectively.

(3) Loans and monetary claims bought treated as loans:
 The fair values of policy loans are deemed to approximate 

book values, considering estimated repayment period and 
interest rate conditions since their repayment deadline have 
not been set up due to the characteristics that the loan is 
limited to the amount of cash surrender values. Therefore, 
the book values are used as the fair values of policy loans.

       The fair values of floating interest rate loans among the 
ordinary loans and monetary claims bought treated as loans 
approximate the book values because the market interest 
rates are reflected in future cash flows in a short period. 
Therefore, the fair values of floating interest rate loans and 
monetary claims bought treated as loans are based on their 
book values. The fair values of fixed interest rate loans are 
measured by discounting the future cash flows to the pres-
ent values.

       The fair values of loans receivable from legally bankrupt 
borrowers, substantially bankrupt borrowers and not currently 
bankrupt borrowers and monetary claims bought treated as 
loans are computed by deducting the amount of the allow-
ance for doubtful accounts from the book values before direct 
write-offs.

(4) Subordinated bonds:
 Subordinated bonds issued by the Company are stated at fair 

market value.
       Carrying amounts, fair values and related differences of 

subordinated bonds have been disclosed as of March 31, 
2014 since the materiality has increased.

(5) Derivative instruments:
i) The fair values of the futures and options traded at the 

exchange are measured at the settlement price of the ex-
change.

ii) The fair values of options and swaps traded over the counter 
are based on the quoted prices offered by counterparty finan-
cial institutions.

iii) The fair values of foreign currency forward contracts are 
determined based on the spot exchange rate and forward 
contract rate.

5. Investment and Rental Property
The Company holds investment and rental properties such as 
office buildings in Tokyo and other areas. The carrying amounts 
and the fair values of investment and rental properties were  
¥223,191 million and ¥271,525 million as of March 31, 2012, 
¥216,722 million and ¥273,809 million as of March 31, 2013 
and ¥180,400 million (US$1,752 million) and ¥261,345 million 
(US$2,539 million) as of March 31, 2014, respectively. The fair 
value is mainly based on the value calculated by the Company in 
accordance with real estate appraisal standards which includes 
some adjustments using the reference prices. 
 The amount corresponding to asset retirement obligations 
included in the carrying amount of investment and rental prop-
erties were ¥1,334 million, ¥1,256 million and ¥1,176 million 
(US$11 million) as of March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respec-
tively.

6. Securities Lent under Lending Agreements
The amount of securities lent under lending agreements were 
¥45,887 million and ¥71,815 million (US$697 million) as of 
March 31, 2013 and 2014, respectively.

7. Loans Receivable
The total amounts of credits to bankrupt borrowers, delinquent 
loans, delinquent loans past 3 months or more and restructured 
loans, which were included in loans, were ¥3,019 million, ¥1,759 
million and ¥1,603 million (US$15 million) as of March 31, 2012, 
2013 and 2014, respectively.

i) The balances of credits to bankrupt borrowers were ¥270 mil-
lion, ¥218 million and ¥195 million (US$1 million) as of March 
31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively.

ii) The balances of delinquent loans were ¥683 million, ¥590 
million and ¥747 million (US$7 million) as of March 31, 2012, 
2013 and 2014, respectively.

iii) There were no balances of delinquent loans past 3 months or 
more as of March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014.

iv) The balances of restructured loans were ¥2,064 million, ¥950 
million, and ¥660 million (US$6 million) as of March 31, 2012, 
2013 and 2014, respectively.

Credits to bankrupt borrowers represent loans, excluding the bal-
ances already written-off, which meet the conditions prescribed 
in Article 96 Paragraph 1 Item 3 and 4 of the Enforcement Regu-
lations of the Corporate Tax Law. Moreover, accruing interest 
on these loans is not recorded as income after determining that 
principal of or interest on these loans is unlikely to be collected 
due to the significant delay in repayment of principal or interest 
payment or for some other reasons.
 Delinquent loans are credits whose accruing interest is 
not recorded as income due to the same reasons as described 
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above, and exclude credits to bankrupt borrowers and loans for 
which interest payments have been suspended and rescheduled 
to assist and support the borrowers in the restructuring of their 
business.
 Delinquent loans past 3 months or more are loans for which 
interest payment or repayment of principal are delinquent for 
3 months or more from the due date under the terms of the 
related loan agreements, excluding those loans classified as 
credits to bankrupt borrowers and delinquent loans.
 Restructured loans are loans for which certain concessions 
favorable to borrowers, such as interest reduction or exemp-
tions, rescheduling of due date of principal or interest payment, 
waiver of claim or other terms, have been negotiated for the pur-
pose of assisting and supporting the borrowers in the restructur-
ing of their business. This category excludes loans classified as 
credits to bankrupt borrowers, delinquent loans and delinquent 
loans past 3 months or more.
 The direct write-offs related to loans decreased credits to 
bankrupt borrowers described above by ¥12 million, ¥1 million 
and ¥251 million (US$1 million) as of March 31, 2012, 2013 and 
2014, respectively.
 The direct write-offs related to loans decreased delinquent 
loans described above by ¥291 million and ¥288 million as of 
March 31, 2012 and 2013, respectively.

8. Accumulated Depreciation of Tangible Fixed Assets
Accumulated depreciation of tangible fixed assets totaled 
to ¥137,618 million, ¥143,241 million and ¥145,599 million 
(US$1,414 million) as of March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, re-
spectively.

9. Separate Accounts
Total assets in separate accounts provided for in Article 118 of 
the Insurance Business Law were ¥82,053 million, ¥78,815 mil-
lion and ¥82,680 million (US$803 million) as of March 31, 2012, 
2013 and 2014, respectively. The amounts of separate account 
liabilities were the same as separate account assets.

10. Receivables from/Payables to Unconsolidated 
      Subsidiaries
The total amounts of receivables from/payables to unconsoli-
dated subsidiaries were ¥2,432 million and ¥177 million as of 
March 31, 2012, ¥3,247 million and ¥184 million as of March 31, 
2013, and ¥3,288 million (US$31 million) and ¥182 million (US$1 
million) as of March 31, 2014, respectively.

11. Income Taxes
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as of March 31, 
2012 were ¥85,897 million and ¥34,529 million, respectively. 
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets was ¥3,155 million.
 Major components of deferred tax assets were ¥49,440 
million of policy reserves, ¥14,279 million of reserve for 
employees’ retirement benefits and ¥11,752 million of reserve 
for price fluctuation of securities as of March 31, 2012. 

 Major component of deferred tax liabilities was ¥30,806 
million of net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities as 
of March 31, 2012.
 The statutory tax rate and the actual effective tax rate 
for the year ended March 31, 2012 were 36.2% and 46.4%, 
respectively. The major differences between the statutory 
tax rate and the actual effective tax rate were 24.9% of the 
reduction of deferred tax assets due to the changes in tax rates 
and (16.3%) of reserve for dividends to the policyholders.
 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as of 
March 31, 2013 were ¥88,575 million and ¥102,048 million, 
respectively. Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets was 
¥3,103 million.
 Major components of deferred tax assets were ¥50,755 
million of policy reserves, ¥14,351 million of reserve for price 
fluctuation of securities and ¥13,859 million of reserve for 
employees’ retirement benefits as of March 31, 2013. 
 Major component of deferred tax liabilities was ¥98,080 
million of net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities as 
of March 31, 2013.
 The statutory tax rate and the actual effective tax rate 
for the year ended March 31, 2013 were 33.3% and 20.1%, 
respectively. The major differences between the statutory tax 
rate and the actual effective tax rate was (14.7%) of reserve for 
dividends to the policyholders.
 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as of March 
31, 2014 were ¥96,261 million (US$935 million) and ¥119,541 
million (US$1,161 million), respectively. Valuation allowance for 
deferred tax assets was ¥3,181 million (US$30 million).
 Major components of deferred tax assets were ¥56,752 
million (US$551 million) of policy reserves, ¥15,490 million 
(US$150 million) of reserve for price fluctuation of securities and 
¥15,035 million (US$146 million) of net defined benefit liabilities 
as of March 31, 2014. 
 Major component of deferred tax liabilities was ¥117,327 
million (US$1,139 million) of net unrealized gains on available-
for-sale securities as of March 31, 2014.
 The statutory tax rate and the actual effective tax rate 
for the year ended March 31, 2014 were 33.3% and 20.1%, 
respectively. The major differences between the statutory tax 
rate and the actual effective tax rate was (16.2%) of reserve for 
dividends to the policyholders.
 Accompanying the promulgation of the “Act for Partial Revi-
sion to the Income Tax Act, etc.” (Act No. 10, 2014), the effec-
tive statutory tax rate used to calculate deferred tax assets and 
deferred tax liabilities was changed. The Company had previ-
ously used an effective statutory tax rate of 33.3% for items 
expected to be collected or paid in the period from April 1, 2014, 
to March 31, 2015, and a rate of 30.8% for items expected to 
be collected or paid on or after April 1, 2015. However, owing 
to the aforementioned law change, the rate of 30.8% for items 
expected to be collected or paid after April 1, 2014 is used. As 
a result of this change in statutory tax rate, deferred tax assets 
decreased ¥22 million (US$219 thousand), deferred tax liabilities 
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12. Reserve for Dividends to Policyholders
Changes in reserve for dividends to policyholders were as follows:
 Years ended March 31,

 2012 2013 2014	 2014

  Millions of 
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Balance at the beginning of current fiscal year ........................................... ¥53,205 ¥53,969 ¥52,307	 $508
Transfer from surplus in previous fiscal year .............................................. 24,381 23,989	 27,762	 269
Dividends paid in the current fiscal year ..................................................... (23,700) (25,727) (29,137)	 (283)
Increase in interest ..................................................................................... 83 76	 74	 0
Balance at the current fiscal year ............................................................... ¥53,969 ¥52,307	 ¥51,007	 $495

increased ¥538 million (US$5 million), and deferred tax liabilities 
for revaluation reserve for land decreased ¥3 million (US$36 

14. Stocks of Unconsolidated Subsidiaries
The amounts of stocks of unconsolidated subsidiaries the Com-
pany held as of March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014 were ¥398 mil-
lion, ¥519 million and ¥519 million (US$5 million), respectively.

15. Pledged Assets and Secured Debts
Assets pledged as collateral as of March 31, 2012 were ¥24,300 
million of securities and ¥397 million of bank deposits. Secured 
debts as of March 31, 2012 were ¥4,608 million.
 Assets pledged as collateral as of March 31, 2013 were 
¥26,930 million of securities and ¥163 million of bank deposits. 
Secured debts as of March 31, 2013 were ¥4,583 million.
 Assets pledged as collateral as of March 31, 2014 were 
¥28,231 million (US$274 million) of securities and ¥1,241 million 
(US$12 million) of bank deposits. Secured debts as of March 31, 
2014 were ¥4,679 million (US$45 million).

16. Policy Reserves for the Reinsurance Contracts
Reserve for outstanding claims for the reinsurance contracts 
provided in accordance with Article 71 Paragraph 1 of the En-
forcement Regulation of the Insurance Business Law (hereinafter 
called "reserve for outstanding claims for ceded reinsurance") 

thousand). Deferred income taxes increased by ¥561 million 
(US$5 million).

were ¥5 million, ¥1 million and ¥4 million (US$41 thousand) as 
of March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively.
 Policy reserve for the reinsurance contracts provided in ac-
cordance with Article 71 Paragraph 1 of the Enforcement Regu-
lation of the Insurance Business Law (hereinafter called "policy 
reserve for ceded reinsurance") were ¥53 million, ¥52 million 
and ¥50 million (US$487 thousand), as of March 31, 2012, 2013 
and 2014, respectively.

17. Commitment Line
As of March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, there were unused 
commitment line agreements under which the Company is the 
lender of ¥1,023 million, ¥972 million and ¥872 million (US$8 
million), respectively.

18. Subordinated Bonds
Repayments of subordinated bonds are subordinated to other 
obligations.

19. Contribution to Policyholders Protection Corporation
The future contribution to the Life Insurance Policyholders Pro-
tection Corporation of Japan under Article 259 of the Insurance 

13. Reserve for Dividends to Policyholders (Fukokushinrai Life Insurance Company)
Changes in reserve for dividends to policyholders were as follows:
 Years ended March 31,

 2012 2013 2014	 2014

  Millions of 
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Balance at the beginning of current fiscal year ...............................................  ¥654 ¥648 ¥697	 $6
Dividends paid in the current fiscal year .........................................................  (446) (406) (504)	 (4)
Increase in interest .........................................................................................  0 0 0	 0
Provision for reserve for dividends to policyholders .......................................  440 455 542	 5
Balance at the current fiscal year ...................................................................  ¥648 ¥697 ¥735	 $7
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Business Law were estimated at ¥11,754 million, ¥12,561 mil-
lion and ¥12,453 million (US$120 million) as of March 31, 2012, 

2013 and 2014, respectively. The contributions were charged as 
operating expenses in the year in which they were paid.

20. Reserve for Employees’ Retirement Benefits
(1) The reserve for employees’ retirement benefits as of March 31, 2012 and 2013, were calculated as follows:

　　　　　As of March 31,
2012 2013

Millions of yen

a. Projected benefit obligation .............................................................................................. ¥(72,936) ¥(72,695)
b. Fair value of pension plan assets ...................................................................................... 17,167 20,006
c. Unfunded benefit obligation (a+b) .................................................................................... (55,768) (52,689)
d. Unrecognized actuarial differences .................................................................................. 10,021 8,134
e. Unrecognized prior service cost ....................................................................................... (636) (598)
f. Reserve for employees’ retirement benefits (c+d+e) ....................................................... ¥(46,384) ¥(45,153)

(2) Gross amount of retirement benefit expenses for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013 were as follows:

　　　 　　Years ended March 31,
2012 2013

Millions of yen

Service cost .......................................................................................................................... ¥2,965 ¥2,892
Interest cost ......................................................................................................................... 1,451 1,456
Expected return on pension plan assets .............................................................................. (471) (515)
Amortization of actuarial differences .................................................................................... 1,218 1,361
Amortization of prior service cost ......................................................................................... (20) (38)

¥5,143 ¥5,156

(3) The Company’s assumptions used in calculation of the above information were as follows:

　　　 　　Years ended March 31,
2012 2013

Millions of yen

Method of attributing the projected benefits to periods of service ...................................... Straight-line
basis

Straight-line
basis

Discount rate ........................................................................................................................ 2.0% 2.0%
Expected rate of return on pension plan assets ................................................................... 3.0% 3.0%
Amortization period of actuarial differences ......................................................................... 10 years 10 years
Amortization period of prior service cost .............................................................................. 10 years 10 years
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21. Matters Related to Employees’ Retirement Benefits as of 
March 31, 2014

(1) Overview of employees’ retirement benefit system
As a defined benefit plan for office-based employees, the Com-
pany and its consolidated subsidiaries have a defined benefit 

corporate pension plan and retirement lump-sum grants. As a 
defined contribution plan for these employees, the Company al-
so has a defined contribution pension plan.
 As a defined benefit plan for sales employees, the Compa-
ny has retirement lump-sum grants.

(2)  Defined benefit plan
  i)  Reconciliation of beginning and end of balance of retirement benefit obligation

　　　　　As of March 31,
2014 2014

Millions of yen
Millions of 

U.S. dollars
Retirement benefit obligation at the beginning of current fiscal year ................................... ¥72,695	 $706	
Service cost .......................................................................................................................... 2,852	 27	
Interest cost ......................................................................................................................... 1,448	 14	
Actuarial difference occurred during the fiscal year ............................................................. 171	 1	
Retirement benefits payments ............................................................................................. (5,349) (51)
Others ................................................................................................................................... (134) (1)
Retirement benefit obligation at the end of current fiscal year ............................................ ¥71,685	 $696	

  ii)  Reconciliation of beginning and end of balance of pension plan assets
　　　　　As of March 31,

2014 2014

Millions of yen
Millions of 

U.S. dollars
Pension plan assets at the beginning of current fiscal year ................................................. ¥20,006	 $194	
Expected return on pension plan assets .............................................................................. 600	 5	
Actuarial difference occurred during the fiscal year ............................................................. 1,333	 12	
Contributions by the employer ............................................................................................. 2,309	 22	
Retirement benefits payments ............................................................................................. (1,405) (13)
Pension plan assets at the end of current fiscal year ........................................................... ¥22,844	 $221

  iii)  Reconciliation of retirement benefit obligation and pension plan assets with net defined benefit liabilities presented on the consoli-
dated balance sheets

　　　　　As of March 31,
2014 2014

Millions of yen
Millions of 

U.S. dollars
a. Funded plan retirement benefit obligation ........................................................................ ¥	29,130	 $		283	
b. Pension plan assets .......................................................................................................... (22,844) (221)
c. (a+b) .................................................................................................................................. 6,285	 61	
d. Unfunded plan retirement benefit obligation .................................................................... 42,554	 413	
e. Net amount of liabilities and assets presented on the consolidated balance sheets ....... 48,840	 474	

f.  Net defined benefit liabilities ............................................................................................ 48,840	 474	
g. Net defined benefit assets ............................................................................................... — —
h. Net amount of liabilities and assets presented on the consolidated 
    balance sheets .................................................................................................................. ¥	48,840	 $		474

  iv)  Breakdown of retirement benefit gains and losses
　　　　　As of March 31,

2014 2014

Millions of yen
Millions of 

U.S. dollars
Service cost .......................................................................................................................... ¥2,852	 $27	
Interest cost ......................................................................................................................... 1,448	 14	
Expected return on pension plan assets .............................................................................. (600) (5)
Amortization of actuarial differences .................................................................................... 759	 7	
Amortization of prior service cost ......................................................................................... (47) (0)	
Retirement benefit expenses related to defined benefit plan .............................................. ¥4,413	 $42
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  v)  Accumulated remeasurements of defined benefit plan
Accumulated remeasurements of defined benefit plan (before tax effects) comprised the following:

　　　　　As of March 31,
2014 2014

Millions of yen
Millions of 

U.S. dollars

Unrecognized actuarial differences ....................................................................................... ¥(6,212) $(60)

Unrecognized prior service cost ............................................................................................ 551	 5	

Total ....................................................................................................................................... ¥(5,661) $(55)

  vi)  Breakdown of main pension plan assets
The breakdown of main asset categories as a percentage of total pension plan assets is as follows:

　As of March 31,
2014

Life insurance general account .................................................................................................................................. 45.2%

Domestic bonds ........................................................................................................................................................ 16.7%

Domestic stocks ........................................................................................................................................................ 16.7%

Foreign stocks ........................................................................................................................................................... 14.4%

Foreign bonds ............................................................................................................................................................ 6.1%

Cash and deposits ..................................................................................................................................................... 0.9%

Others ....................................................................................................................................................................... 0.0%

Total ........................................................................................................................................................................... 100.0%

  vii)  Method for setting the expected long-term rate of return
To set the expected long-term rate of return on pension plan 
assets, the Company takes into account the present and future 
allocation of pension plan assets, and the present and expected 
future long-term rate of return on the diverse range of assets 
that makes up the pension assets.

  viii)  Underlying actuarial assumptions
Main underlying actuarial assumptions as of March 31, 2014, 
were as follows:
◦ Discount rate �����������������  2.0%
◦ Expected long-term rate of return on pension plan assets
　　　　　　　　�����������������  3.0%

(3) Defined contribution plan
The required contribution amount by the Company and its sub-
sidiaries to the defined contribution plan was ¥255 million.

III. Notes to Statements of Operations

1. Transactions with Unconsolidated Subsidiaries
The total amounts of revenues and expenditures in connection 
with unconsolidated subsidiaries were ¥96 million and ¥2,884 
million for the year ended March 31, 2012, ¥97 million and 
¥3,054 million for the year ended March 31, 2013, and ¥106 
million (US$1 million) and ¥2,973 million (US$28 million) for the 
year ended March 31, 2014, respectively.

2. Policy Reserves for the Reinsurance Contracts
For the year ended March 31, 2012, reversal of reserve for 
outstanding claims for ceded reinsurance considered in 
calculation of reversal of reserve for outstanding claims was 
¥36 million and reversal of policy reserve for ceded reinsurance 
considered in calculation of provision for policy reserve was ¥1 
million.
 For the year ended March 31, 2013, reversal of reserve 
for outstanding claims for ceded reinsurance considered in 
calculation of provision for reserve for outstanding claims was 
¥3 million and reversal of policy reserve for ceded reinsurance 
considered in calculation of provision for policy reserve was ¥1 
million.
 For the year ended March 31, 2014, provision for reserve 
for outstanding claims for ceded reinsurance considered in 
calculation of provision for reserve for outstanding claims was 
¥2 million (US$22 thousand) and reversal of policy reserve for 
ceded reinsurance considered in calculation of provision for 
policy reserve was ¥2 million (US$20 thousand).

3. Impairment Losses of Fixed Assets
For the year ended March 31, 2013 and 2014, impairment losses 
of fixed assets by the Company were as follows:  
    
(1) Method of grouping

Real estate and other assets used for insurance business opera-
tions are classified as one asset group as a whole. Other assets 
such as real estate for rent and unused real estate are classified 
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(3) Asset groups recognized impairment losses and losses by fixed assets      
Years ended March 31,　　　　　 　

	 	 2013	 2014	 2014
 Millions of 
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Real estate for rent:
 Land.............................................................................................................................  ¥183 ¥1,541	 $14

 Buildings and others ....................................................................................................  26 140	 1

 Total real estate for rent (i) ..........................................................................................  210 1,682	 16

Unused real estate:
 Land.............................................................................................................................  177 35	 0

 Buildings and others ....................................................................................................  212 58	 0

 Total unused real estate (ii) ..........................................................................................  390 93	 0

Total:
 Land.............................................................................................................................  361 1,577	 15

 Buildings and others ....................................................................................................  239 198	 1

 Total (i)+(ii) ...................................................................................................................  ¥600 ¥1,775	 $17

* Figures for March 31, 2013, are omitted owing to their minor level of importance.

(4) Calculation method of recoverable amount      
Recoverable amount is based on net sales value. Net sales value is determined based on appraisal value, posted price or road rate.

as one group individually.

(2) Background of recognizing the impairment losses 

Profitability of certain real estate for rent dropped down significantly due to a decrease in the level of rental income and a declining trend 
of market prices of land. The Company reduced its book values of such real estate for rent and unused real estate to their recoverable 
amounts. The amounts reduced were recognized as impairment losses and included in the extraordinary losses.
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IV. Notes to Statement of Comprehensive Income

1. Other Comprehensive Income   
The amounts recycled and tax effect amounts related to other comprehensive income were as follows:

Years ended March 31,　　　　　  　　　　 　

	 2012	 2013	 2014	 2014
 Millions of 
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities, net of tax
 Amount incurred during the fiscal year ..................................................  ¥69,198 ¥214,928 ¥87,278	 $848
 Amount recycled ....................................................................................  14,702 3,637  (24,665)	 (239)
      Before tax adjustment .......................................................................  83,901 218,566	 62,613	 608
      Tax effects .........................................................................................  (24,946) (67,274) (19,246)	 (187)
      Net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities, 
      net of tax ...........................................................................................  58,955 151,291	 43,367	 421
Deferred valuation gains (losses) under hedge accounting, net of tax
 Amount incurred during the fiscal year ..................................................  14	 (0) (18)	 (0)
 Amount recycled ....................................................................................  (330) (160) (71)	 (0)
      Before tax adjustment .......................................................................  (316) (161) (90)	 (0)
      Tax effects .........................................................................................  122 53 30	 0
      Deferred valuation gains (losses) under hedge accounting, 
      net of tax ...........................................................................................  (194) (107) (60)	 (0)
Revaluation reserve for land, net of tax
 Amount incurred during the fiscal year ..................................................  —	 —	 —	 —
 Amount recycled ....................................................................................  — —	 —	 —
      Before tax adjustment .......................................................................  — —	 —	 —
      Tax effects .........................................................................................  2,854 (17)	 3	 0
      Revaluation reserve for land, net of tax.............................................  2,854 (17)	 3	 0
Foreign currency translation adjustment
 Amount incurred during the fiscal year ..................................................  (67)	 193 373	 3
 Amount recycled ....................................................................................  — — —	 —
      Before tax adjustment .......................................................................  (67) 193 373	 3
      Tax effects .........................................................................................  — — —	 —
      Foreign currency translation adjustment ...........................................  (67) 193	 373	 3
Total other comprehensive income ................................................................  ¥61,548 ¥151,359	 ¥43,684	 $424
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As of March 31,　　　　　　　　　

 2012 2013 2014	 2014

  Millions of 
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Cash and deposits ...................................................................................................  ¥  73,260 ¥  72,868 ¥		91,021	 $			884
Call loans .................................................................................................................  65,600 70,300 148,700	 1,444
Monetary claims bought ..........................................................................................  1,351 1,111 1,011	 9
Time deposits maturing over 3 months of the date of acquisition ..........................  (200) (200) (300)	 (2)
Foreign currency deposits maturing over 3 months of the date of acquisition .......  (155) (371) (1,047)	 (10)
Monetary claims bought maturing over 3 months of the date of acquisition ..........  (1,351) (1,111) (1,011)	 (9)
Cash and cash equivalents ......................................................................................  ¥138,504 ¥142,596		 ¥238,373		 $2,316

V. Notes to Statements of Cash Flows

1. Scope of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as of March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014 
consist of "Cash," "Deposits in transfer account," "Current depos-
its," "Ordinary deposits," "Notice deposits," "Time deposits matur-
ing within 3 months of the date of acquisition," "Foreign currency 

deposits maturing within 3 months of the date of acquisition," 
"Negotiable certificate of deposits maturing within 3 months of 
the date of acquisition," "Call loans" and "Monetary claims bought 
maturing within 3 months of the date of acquisition."

2. Reconciliations of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Reconciliations of cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated 

statements of cash flows to the consolidated balance sheets ac-
counts as of March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014 were as follows:
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1. Matters relating to the basic framework of internal control over financial reporting
Yoshiteru Yoneyama, President of Fukoku Mutual Life Insurance Company (the “Company”), is responsible for the 
design and operation of internal control over financial reporting for the Company’s financial statements, namely, con-
solidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, cash flows, 
changes in net assets and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year 
ended March 31, 2014, prepared in accordance with Article 110 Paragraph 2 of the Insurance Business Law. The 
Company designs and operates its internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the basic framework of 
internal control set forth in the "Standards and Practice Standards for Management Assessment and Audit concerning 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting (Council Opinions)" issued by the Business Accounting Council of the Finan-
cial Service Agency of Japan.

Internal control aims at achieving the objectives to a reasonable extent with the organized and integrated function of 
individual components of internal control as a whole. Therefore, internal control over financial reporting cannot always 
ensure the prevention or detection of misstatements in the presentation of financial reporting.

2. Matters relating to the scope of assessment, the basis date of assessment and the assessment procedures
The Company performed an assessment of internal control over financial reporting for its consolidated financial state-
ments as of the end of the fiscal years, March 31, 2014 in accordance with generally accepted assessment standards 
in Japan for internal control over financial reporting.

In the assessment of internal control over financial reporting, the Company first assessed internal controls that have 
a material impact on overall consolidated financial reporting ("company-level controls") and, based on the results, the 
Company selected the business processes to be assessed. In assessing those business processes, the Company 
analyzed selected business processes, identified a key control that would have a material impact on the reliability of 
financial reporting, and assessed the establishment and operation with regard to the key control. The Company as-
sessed the effectiveness of internal control by the aforementioned procedures.

For the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries, the Company determined the scope of assessment of internal 
control over financial reporting from the perspective of their materiality to the reliability of financial reporting. The mate-
riality to the reliability of financial reporting is determined in light of their degree of quantitative and qualitative impact. 
The Company rationally determined the scope of assessment of internal controls incorporated into business processes 
("process-level controls") based on the results of assessment of company-level controls regarding the Company and 
one consolidated subsidiary. Other than those indicated above, four consolidated subsidiaries were determined to be 
immaterial from quantitative and qualitative perspectives. Consequently, they are excluded from the scope of assess-
ment of company-level controls.

With respect to the scope of assessment of process-level controls, the locations or business units were selected in 
descending order of ordinary revenues (after elimination of inter-company transactions) in the previous fiscal year until 
their combined amount reached about two-thirds of consolidated ordinary revenues. As a result, the Company was 
selected as "significant locations or business units". At selected significant locations and business units (the Company), 
business processes related to accounting items that were closely associated with the company's business objectives, 
including securities, ordinary loans and policy reserves, as well as premium and other income and claims and other 
payments, which have a material impact on the calculation of policy reserves, were determined to be within the scope 
of assessment. Furthermore, at selected significant locations and business units and any other locations and business 
units, added to the scope of assessment were business processes relating to important accounting items that have 
a high possibility of material misstatements and involve estimates and judgments, and business processes relating to 
businesses or operations dealing with high-risk transactions.

3. Matters relating to the results of the assessment
As a result of performing the assessment, the Company concluded that the design and operation of internal control 
over financial reporting for the Company were effective as of March 31, 2014.

4. Supplementary Information (None)

   May 20, 2014
   Yoshiteru Yoneyama
   President
   Fukoku Mutual Life Insurance Company

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
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Report of Independent Auditors
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Board of Representative 
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Staff of Audit & 
Supervisory 
Board Member

Secretarial Div.
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Compliance Control Dept.

Corporate Risk Management Dept.

General Affairs Dept.

Personnel Dept.

Market Planning Dept.

Retail Management Dept.
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Strategic Market Promotion Dept.
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Corporate Customer Service Dept.

Pension Actuarial Div.

Individual Customer Service Dept.

Underwriting and Medical Dept.

Claims Dept.

Policy Administration Dept.
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Operation and System Planning Dept.

Fixed Income Dept.

Equities Dept.

Loans Dept.

Separate Accounts Management Div.

Real Estate Dept.

Investment Planning Dept.

Investment Assets Administrative Dept.

Accounting Dept.

Actuarial Dept.

Internal Auditing Dept.

Affiliated Business Dept.

Committee for Editing History of the Company

Branch Offices

Nomination Committee of 
Candidates for 
Representative Members

Secretariat for Nomination 
Committee of Candidates for 
Representative Members

Board of Directors

Board of Full-time Directors

Council

Human Resourse 
Development 
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Chief Actuary

Domestic	Offices	(As of July 2, 2014)

   Branch Offices 62

   Field Offices 468

Employees (As of March 31, 2014)

   Office Staff 2,901

   Sales Representatives 10,098

Corporate Organization
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From left : D. Hachigo , K. Sato , A. Sato , 
T. Keevil and J. Doran

Directory

Fukoku Life International (America) Inc.
From left : A. Chang , T. Ogino , S. Lester , 
Y. Shigeta and M. Xu

Fukoku Life Research Singapore Pte. Ltd.
From Left : J. Lim , S. Narue and Y. Yoshida
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▲ Tokyo Head Office

▲ Osaka Fukoku Mutual Life Insurance Building
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